
Notice of Meeting
Western Area 
Planning Committee
Wednesday 31 October 2018 at 6.30 pm
in the Council Chamber  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury

Members Interests
Note:  If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on this 
agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Further information for members of the public
Note: The Council broadcasts some of its meetings on the internet, known as webcasting. If this 
meeting is webcasted, please note that any speakers addressing this meeting could be filmed. If 
you are speaking at a meeting and do not wish to be filmed, please notify the Chairman before 
the meeting takes place. Please note however that you will be audio-recorded. Those taking 
part in Public Speaking are reminded that speakers in each representation category are 
grouped and each group will have a maximum of 5 minutes to present its case.
Plans relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting can be viewed in the 
Council Chamber, Market Street, Newbury between 5.30pm and 6.30pm on the day of the 
meeting.  No new information may be produced to Committee on the night (this does not 
prevent applicants or objectors raising new points verbally). If objectors or applicants wish to 
introduce new additional material they must provide such material to planning officers at least 5 
clear working days before the meeting (in line with the Local Authorities (Access to Meetings 
and Documents) (Period of Notice) (England) Order 2002).
For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148
Email: planapps@westberks.gov.uk 
Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the 
Council’s website at www.westberks.gov.uk 
Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to Rachel Craggs on 
(01635) 519441     Email:  rachel.craggs@westberks.gov.uk
Date of despatch of Agenda:  Tuesday 23 October 2018

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting

Public Document Pack

mailto:planapps@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/


Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 31 October 2018 
(continued)

To: Councillors Jeff Beck, Dennis Benneyworth, Paul Bryant (Vice-Chairman), 
Hilary Cole, James Cole, Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards, Paul Hewer, 
Clive Hooker (Chairman), Anthony Pick, Garth Simpson and 
Virginia von Celsing

Substitutes: Councillors Jeremy Bartlett, Jeanette Clifford, Mike Johnston and 
Gordon Lundie

Agenda
Part I Page No.

1.   Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2.   Minutes 7 - 20
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this 
Committee held on 10 October 2018.

3.   Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any 
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on 
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.   Schedule of Planning Applications
(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the right 
to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest and 
participation in individual applications).

(1)    Application No. and Parish: 18/01657/COND1 - Cold Ash Parish Council 21 - 26
Proposal: Approval of details reserved by Condition 4 - 

External Materials Schedule and samples, 7 - 
Construction Method Statement, 8 - Surfacing for 
driveways/access points, 10 - Vehicle parking and 
turning, 11 - Access details, 12 - Cycle storage, 13 - 
Refuse storage and 15 - Boundary hedge, of 
planning permission reference 16/02529/OUTD. 

Location: Land adjacent to Summerfield, the Ridge, Cold Ash
Applicant: T A Fisher and Sons Limited.
Recommendation: The Head of Development and Planning be 

authorised to GRANT a split decision conditions 
discharge.

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 31 October 2018 
(continued)

(2)    Application No. and Parish: 18/01914/HOUSE - Hampstead Norreys 
Parish Council

27 - 34

Proposal: Two storey side extension
Location: Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead Norreys
Applicant: Mr Lee Clarke
Recommendation: The Head of Development and Planning be 

authorised to GRANT planning permission.

(3)    Application No. and Parish: 18/02019/COMIND - Newbury Town 
Council

35 - 66

Proposal: Extension and alteration of existing cottage to 
create hotel restaurant with outdoor seating terrace, 
condenser unit to side and roof-mounted extract

Location: Newbury Manor Hotel, London Road, Newbury, 
Berkshire RG14 2BY

Applicant: SCP Newbury Manor Ltd
Recommendation: The Head of Development and Planning be 

authorised to GRANT planning permission.

Background Papers

(a) The West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.
(b) The West Berkshire District Local Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the 

Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire, the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire and 
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents.

(c) Any previous planning applications for the site, together with correspondence and 
report(s) on those applications.

(d) The case file for the current application comprising plans, application forms, 
correspondence and case officer’s notes.

(e) The Human Rights Act.

Andy Day
Head of Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2018

Councillors Present: Jeff Beck, Paul Bryant (Vice-Chairman), James Cole, Adrian Edwards, 
Paul Hewer, Clive Hooker (Chairman), Anthony Pick, Garth Simpson and Virginia von Celsing

Also Present: Michael Butler (Principal Planning Officer), Paul Goddard (Team Leader - 
Highways Development Control), Councillor Gordon Lundie (Council Member), Lydia Mather 
(Senior Planning Officer) and Jo Reeves (Principal Policy Officer)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Dennis Benneyworth and Councillor 
Hilary Cole

Councillor Absent: Councillor Billy Drummond

PART I

21. Minutes
The Minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2018 were approved as a true and 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

22. Declarations of Interest
Councillor Clive Hooker declared an interest in Agenda Item 4 (1), but reported that, as 
his interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the 
matter.
Councillor Virginia von Celsing joined the meeting at 6.33pm and confirmed that she had 
no interest to declare.)

23. Schedule of Planning Applications
(1) Application No. and Parish: 18/01564/FULD - The Coach, Worlds 

End, Beedon, RG20 8SD
(Councillor Clive Hooker declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 4(1) by virtue of the 
fact that he was the Ward Member and had been involved in the application but 
confirmed that he would consider it afresh. As his interest was personal and not 
prejudicial or a disclosable pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the 
debate and vote on the matter but would step down as Chairman for the item on order to 
address the Committee as Ward Member.) 

(Councillor Paul Bryant, Vice-Chairman, in the Chair)
1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(1)) concerning Planning 

Application 18/01564/FULD in respect of the erection of two semi-detached 
dwellings within the curtilage of The Coach, in Worlds End, Beedon.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Giles Rainy Brown and Peter Logie, 
objectors, and Chris Roberts, agent, addressed the Committee on this application.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

3. Lydia Mather introduced the report and update sheet to Members, which took 
account of all the relevant policy considerations and other material considerations. 
In conclusion the report detailed that the proposal was acceptable and a 
conditional approval was justifiable. Officers, on balance, recommended the 
Committee grant planning permission.

4. Councillor Paul Bryant noted that no representative from the parish council was to 
address the Committee on the application and asked that his disappointment in 
their absence, on a high profile application within the community, be recorded.

5. Giles Rainy Brown and Peter Logie in addressing the Committee raised the 
following points:

 Objectors concerns related to the size, safety and sustainability of the proposed 
development and it would be excessive to shoehorn two dwellings onto a small 
site.

 The need for the dwellings was not clear and not stipulated in the Council’s site 
allocation policies.

 The townhouse style of the development was out of keeping and would not 
contribute to the character of the area, a requirement of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 The majority of houses in the area had large front gardens and were set back from 
the road. The proposed parking spaces at the front of the dwellings would 
overhang the pavement by 40cm. 

 Health and safety issues would be caused such as large delivery vehicles and 
residential traffic being in conflict. The pub was also used as a pick up point for a 
local school bus. 

 A neighbouring property, the Old Stores, would suffer a loss of light. 

 The position of the oil tank in relation to residential properties would contravene 
guidance. 

 It was wrong that the application did not include the pub and the Committee 
should ensure the sustainability of that rural enterprise. 

 If the Committee were minded to approve the application, a condition should be 
applied to ensure the availability of all 17 of the pub’s car parking spaces 
throughout construction.

6. Councillor Garth Simpson asked what the distance would be between the windows 
of the Old Stores and the proposed dwellings. Mr Rainy Brown estimated it would 
be a couple of metres.

7. Councillor Bryant requested more information regarding the school pick-up. Mr 
Logie advised that parents dropped off children at the site and the school bus 
would pull up for the children to board. 

8. Councillor Bryant sought clarification regarding the assertion that vehicles would 
overhang the footway at the front of the proposed properties. Mr Logie advised 
that the spaces at the front would measure 4.4m when they were required to be 
4.8m.

9. Councillor Simpson asked whether the pub’s car parking spaces were regularly 
full. Mr Logie responded that at weekends the car park was often full and cars 
would park on the street. 

Page 6



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

10.Chris Roberts, in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The capital gain from the sale of the properties would ensure the viability of a 
valued community public house, which was facing economic challenges despite 
being run well by the current tenants. 

 The applicant had volunteered to install a speed bump in the car park as a traffic 
calming measure and the pub garden would be re-provided. 

 A construction management plan would be used to ensure that any disruption 
would be minimal. 

 The proposal would not be detrimental to the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
and the Council’s policy required the properties to front the highway.

11.Councillor Jeff Beck requested more information on the beer garden. Mr Roberts 
advised that an area on the site currently not open to the public would be 
developed. 

12.Councillor Beck asked how the residential parking spaces at the rear of the 
proposed dwellings would be allocated. Mr Roberts advised that the applicant 
would take the advice of the Highways Officer on how best to allocate the spaces. 
Regarding the spaces to the front, the footpath would be controlled by conditions.

13.Councillor Anthony Pick noted that Mr Roberts had stated the capital gain would 
support the business and asked how. Michael Butler responded at the Vice-
Chairman’s request and clarified that there was no Section 106 agreement in 
place to stipulate that the capital gain was reinvested into the business. Planning 
permission was not personal so the disposal of the land value would be the 
landowner’s decision. The Committee was not in a position to control this.

14.Councillor Pick asked whether the land proposed for the new beer garden would 
be suitable for conversion. Mr Roberts advised that indicative drawings had been 
submitted to the case officer.

15.Councillor Pick further asked what plans there were to mitigate the risk of flooding. 
Mr Roberts advised that the residential gardens would help and permeable tarmac 
would be used in the car park. 

16.Councillor James Cole asked for the agent’s view on the safety of the car park as 
there was a long straight stretch of road past the pub’s entrance. Mr Roberts 
confirmed that regard had been given to the perspective of the Highways Officer 
and additional safety measures had been volunteered.

17.Councillor Clive Hooker, speaking as Ward Member, in addressing the Committee 
raised the following points:

 The application had received over 50 objections which was unusual for a small 
development of two houses.

 There was a concern that the proposed dwellings would be overdevelopment of 
the site and too close to the neighbouring property. 

 The re-provided pub garden was a welcome gesture but the development might 
impact the pub’s long-term viability. 

 There were safety concerns regarding the access. 

 There was nothing to guarantee that the capital gain would be reinvested in the 
pub. The community had already lost the nearby Langley Hall pub. 

Page 7



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

 The proposed development would change the culture of the village.
18.Councillor Adrian Edwards asked for Councillor Hooker’s views on the location of 

the oil tank. Councillor Hooker responded that it would be an issue for building 
regulations, however it was likely that the developer would need to build 
foundations against the oil tank which might impact on the final width of the 
dwellings. 

19.Councillor Edwards further asked about overlooking and the impact on the 
neighbouring property. Councillor Hooker responded that 2 metres outside the 
neighbour’s window a 5 metre wall would be constructed. While there would be no 
overlooking there would be a loss of light. 

20.Turning to questions for officers, Councillor Virginia von Celsing asked for the 
Highways Officer’s view on the car parking spaces at the front of the proposed 
dwellings. Paul Goddard stated that the spaces would be 40cm short of the 
required 4.8m length. Officers had asked that the footpath was widened to 1.5m. 
To accommodate the parking spaces the applicant would need to set the houses 
back 40cm further from the road or remove the proposed porches. Paul Goddard 
recommended that if the Committee were minded to approve the application a 
condition could be applied to ensure the matter was rectified. To clarify a further 
query from Councillor von Celsing, Paul Goddard responded that should the 
house be set further back from the road, the garden size should be decreased in 
order to preserve the parking to the rear of the properties.

21.Councillor Bryant asked whether the application should return to the Committee 
for determination should the applicant need to amend the plans as discussed. 
Michael Butler advised that it could be agreed by officers as a non-material 
amendment. 

22.Councillor von Celsing asked how the oil tank might affect the construction of the 
development. Lydia Mather advised that it could not be considered as a planning 
matter because separate legislation applied. If the applicant was unable to meet 
the requirements of that legislation the development might not proceed.

23.Councillor Pick requested information regarding the site density. Michael Butler 
advised that it would equate to 24 units per hectare which was considered 
acceptable by officers. 

24.Councillor Pick queried the consultation with the Council’s drainage officer. Lydia 
Mather confirmed they were consulted and she had received no response. 

25.Councillor Pick further queried how the conditions to mitigate the impact on the 
proposed dwellings of odours and road noise would be enforced. Lydia Mather 
highlighted that they had been recommended by Environmental Health officers 
and the pub was in the blue line of the development. 

26.Councillor Hooker questioned whether the properties would be big enough to live 
in should they have to be reduced to accommodate the parking spaces at the front 
and to build foundations next to the current oil tank. Michael Butler responded that 
the dwellings would still meet best practice guidance even if their overall size was 
reduced by 10%. 

27.Councillor Cole asked how the risks associated with the access and parking 
provision would be dealt with. Paul Goddard advised that it was unlikely that 
vehicles would achieve high speeds over 30m and suggested that if the 
Committee were minded to approve the application they could request a condition 
to introduce speed reducing features. 

Page 8



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

28.Councillor Simpson speculated that the properties, if approved, might be tenanted 
as houses of multiple occupation (HMOs) with several cars which could cause 
parking and safety issues. Michael Butler reminded Members that the possible 
future tenure of the dwellings was not a matter the Committee should take into 
consideration. 

29.Councillor Paul Hewer enquired whether The Coach was on the register of 
community assets. Lydia Mather confirmed it was not. 

30. In commencing the debate, Councillor Jeff Beck explained that he had been a 
member of the Western Area Planning Committee for a number of years and in his 
view there were too many elements of the application that were wrong. If it went 
ahead, the development could lead to the demise of the pub. He proposed that the 
Committee reject the Officer’s recommendation and so refuse planning 
permission. This proposal was seconded by Councillor Cole. 

31.Councillor Pick stated he was at a dilemma because the agent had advised that 
the development would assist the viability of the pub but a smaller pub garden 
could have an adverse impact. 

32.Councillor Edwards stated that he had been open minded until the site visit and 
had seen that there would be a negative impact on the neighbouring property and 
would be, in his view, overdevelopment of the site. 

33.Councillor Cole told the Committee of a personal experience whereby he had 
been a passenger in a car travelling at low speeds which had unfortunately hit a 
child coming out of a pub. The child had survived however the accident had 
demonstrated that injury could still be caused at low speeds. As a result of that 
experience and the safety issues on the site Councillor Cole advised that he could 
not support the application.

34.Councillor Hewer expressed the view that although there might be a negative 
impact on the pub, a Planning Inspector was likely to overturn a refusal at appeal 
and so he reluctantly supported the application. 

35.Councillor Hooker opined that a number of issues had come to light through the 
Committee’s discussion and this was inexcusable given the time the applicant had 
to submit the application. 

36.  Councillor Simpson stated that he was unable to make a decision without more 
information regarding the viability of the pub. Councillor Beck responded that the 
Committee were entitled to consider the impact on the pub because it was 
included in the red line of the development.

37.Councillor Bryant advised that he would find it difficult to agree to refusal because 
the landowner could easily sell the land and divorce the site from the pub. 
Councillor Hooker stated that the Committee was not confronted with that 
situation. 

38.At the request of officers, Councillor Beck clarified that his reasons to refuse the 
application in planning terms should include overdevelopment of the site, concern 
about the oil tank, the design was not in-keeping with the area, flooding concerns 
had not been addressed, there would be a negative effect on visitors to the pub, 
sub-standard parking provision, loss of the beer garden, safety and the overall 
poor quality of development. Councillor Cole added that the overshadowing effect 
on the neighbour should also be included. 

Page 9



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

39.The Chairman invited the Committee to vote on the proposal of Councillor Beck, 
as seconded by Councillor Cole, to reject officer’s recommendation and refuse 
planning permission. At the vote the motion was carried.

RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to refuse 
planning permission for the following reasons:
Reasons
The proposed dwellings are town house in design and as such fail to have regard to the 
rural building character of the more immediate surroundings or harmonise with them. The 
proposed dwellings would be cramped, being of substantial depth to fit within the site, out 
of character with the existing lower density surrounding development. As such the 
proposed dwellings are contrary to policies C1 and C3 of the Housing Site Allocations 
Development Plan Document 2006-2026, Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
Quality Design 2006, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.
2. The proposed parking layout is sub-standard where the required 1.5 metre footway 
results in 2 parking spaces to the front of the proposed dwellings being less than the 
required 4.8 metres in length, resulting in parked cars being partly over the footway. It 
has not been adequately demonstrated how the 3 car parking spaces to the rear of the 
site would be used separately and without conflict between the parking spaces for the 
public house. As such the proposed layout of the site fails to provide an adequate parking 
design and layout, contrary to policy P1 of the Housing Site Allocations Development 
Plan Document 2006-2026.
3. The proposed access between the side elevation wall and the side elevation wall of 
the proposed dwelling, whilst wide enough at 4.6 metres to allow cars to pass, would not 
provide a separate pedestrian access and there would be poor visibility for drivers 
beyond these walls when entering and accessing the site. As such the proposed access 
fails to create a safe environment or give priority to pedestrians, contrary to policies CS13 
and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2018.
4. The site is located in an area with a history of flooding and insufficient information has 
been submitted on how the proposed development would not impact on the capacity of 
an area to store floodwater, flow of surface water, and appropriate flood risk mitigation 
through the implementation of sustainable drainage methods. As such the application 
fails to comply with policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018.
5. The proposed development involves the loss of the public house beer garden. The 
area of land to the rear of the public house, within the blue line of the application, has 
been identified as an area where the beer garden could be re-provided. The area is 
significantly smaller than the existing garden and no detailed plans have been submitted 
regarding the works required to provide a replacement beer garden. As such the 
development fails to provide for the ongoing amenity of visitors to the public house that is 
likely to result in a negative impact on the operation of the public house as community 
asset within a rural area, contrary to policies ADPP5 and CS14 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026, Supplementary Planning Guidance: Public Houses, and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018.
6. The proposed dwellings are against the south boundary of the site in close proximity to 
the rear elevation of the neighbouring property. The neighbouring property has a ground 
floor habitable room with a single window towards this boundary. The proposed two 
storey dwelling on the boundary would result in an unacceptable level of overshadowing 

Page 10



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

and would be overbearing on the occupants of the neighbouring dwelling, contrary to 
policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Supplementary Planning 
Document: Quality Design 2006, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.

(2) Application No. and Parish: 18/01883/FULD - Land to the rear of 
The Sheiling, School Lane, East Garston, RG17 7HR

(Councillor Clive Hooker in the Chair.)
1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(2)) concerning Planning 

Application 18/01883/FULD in respect of the conversion of existing stables and 
storage barn including new linking extension to form a 3 bedroom residential 
dwelling at land to the rear of The Sheiling, School Lane, East Garston.

2. The Chairman noted that Councillor Chris Tonge from East Garston Parish 
Council had made an application to speak within the required timescales however 
this had not been recorded on the update sheet for the Committee. The 
Committee voted to permit Councillor Tonge to speak.

3. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Councillor Chris Tonge, Parish 
Council representative, Thomas Cassells-Smith, objector, Mr Davies, applicant 
and Mr Steven Smallman, agent, addressed the Committee on this application.

4. Lydia Mather introduced the report and update sheet to Members, which took 
account of all the relevant policy considerations and other material considerations. 
In conclusion the report detailed that the proposal was unacceptable and a 
conditional approval was not justifiable. Officers strongly recommended the 
Committee refuse planning permission.

5. Councillor Tonge in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 In the Parish Council’s view the proposed development would encroach on the 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and contravene West Berkshire 
Council’s planning policies. 

 Opposition to the application was widely held in the local area. Concerns included 
potential overlooking and the need to maintain the land for equine use. 

 Should the Committee approve the application it could open the floodgates to 
similar applications. 

6. Councillor Anthony Pick asked what agricultural use the land could serve. 
Councillor Tonge responded that the land could be used as horse paddocks which 
was a valuable amenity in the area. 

7. Councillor James Cole asked for the parish council’s view regarding whether the 
barns were genuinely redundant, as the officer’s report noted that there was 
contradictory evidence. Councillor Tonge noted that the barns were in use by 
horses at the time of the ecological assessment in 2016.

8. Councillor Clive Hooker enquired whether the paddocks would support the racing 
industry. Councillor Tonge responded that due to their small size it was unlikely 
that the site would be useful to the industry. 

9. Mr Cassells-Smith, in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The site was outside the settlement boundary of East Garston. If the proposal was 
accepted by the Committee there was a risk of infilling by a further development. 

 He believed that the applicants wished to sell the land to a developer. 

Page 11



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

 The proposal would destroy the character of the village. 

 There were safety concerns regarding the access as a door of The Sheiling would 
open directly onto the access road. 

10.Councillor Paul Bryant enquired on what land the objectors feared a further 
development could be constructed. Mr Cassells-Smith indicated the position on 
the block plan. 

11.Mr Davies and Mr Smallman, in addressing the Committee, raised the following 
points:

 The application was in accordance with the Council’s policy C4. The proposed 
buildings for conversion were structurally sound and genuinely redundant; their 
conversion would not lead to an application for a replacement building. 

 The buildings were converted in 1975 from former pigsties and were never 
intended for stabling horses.

 The applicant had formerly permitted grazing of horses on the land but the 
agreement excluded the use of the buildings. The buildings were not appropriate 
for commercial use and they were disused. 

 It was proposed that the applicants would live in the barn conversion. 

 It would be of sympathetic design and maintain the character of the area. 

 The site was well related to East Garston. 

 A construction ecological management plan would be used to mitigate the impact 
on any wildlife. 

12.Councillor Anthony Pick asked how the application differed to a former application 
on the site decided in 2017. Mr Smallman advised that the landscaping had been 
modified and further information had been provided regarding the use of the 
buildings. Councillor Pick further asked about the access road cutting through the 
middle of The Sheiling’s garden. Mr Davies advised that it was common in the 
area and constant traffic was not expected. 

13.Councillor Bryant questioned whether the buildings were of sound construction. Mr 
Smallman advised that the planning officer had accepted that the building was 
capable of conversion and met the test laid out in the relevant policy.

14.Councillor Adrian Edwards asked how the site was well related to the village when 
it was outside the settlement boundary. Mr Smallman advised it was on the edge 
of the village.

15.Councillor Jeff Back asked for more information regarding the access road. Mr 
Smallman advised that should the Committee be minded to approve the 
application the Committee could apply a Grampian condition to require that the 
current side door of The Sheiling was blocked off. 

16.Councillor Cole asked whether the barns had been used for storing equine 
equipment. Mr Smallman advised that if they had it was without the applicant’s 
permission. Use of the barns as field shelter had been permitted at the applicant’s 
discretion. 

17.Councillor Gordon Lundie, in addressing the Committee as Ward Member, raised 
the following points:

Page 12



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

 It was rare he disagreed with the Parish Council and he was confused why this 
application had attracted the level of objection it had. 

 The building was redundant and not attractive. 

 The Council had a housing target to meet and 300-500 dwellings in AONB spatial 
area of the District were assumed to be developed as ‘windfall gains’ such as this 
proposed development. 

 There would be a modest increase in height and footprint which would bring the 
buildings back into use. They had no essential function as there were no homeless 
horses in the area. 

18.Councillor Beck asked for Councillor Lundie’s view on the access; Councillor 
Lundie noted there would be no significant increase in traffic and there were many 
narrow lanes in the area. There were planning solutions available to reduce the 
safety risks. 

19.Councillor Virginia von Celsing questioned why Councillor Lundie supported 
development in the area as it was the AONB. Councillor Lundie responded that he 
had balanced his views regarding the right of an individual to enjoy their own 
property, the Council’s housing targets and the beautiful area and had concluded 
that it was a conversion not a new development so in his view should be 
permitted. 

20.Councillor Pick asked whether there was a housing shortage in East Garston. 
Councillor Lundie advised that he was not in a position to comment. Councillor 
Pick further asked whether there might be further applications for developments in 
the area. Councillor Lundie stated that he would object to building on green field 
sites but supported the application as it was a conversion of redundant building. 

21.Turning to questions for officers, Councillor Bryant asked whether the Highways 
Officer had considered the access onto the road or the suitability of the driveway. 
Paul Goddard confirmed that both had been assessed and the traffic figures did 
not cause a concern. 

22.Councillor Bryant asked for the case officer’s view on whether the railway 
embankment was a visual barrier between the site and the village. Lydia Mather 
confirmed that the settlement boundary was the other side of the embankment 
from the site and in her view the site was not well related to the village. 

23.Councillor Bryant recalled that formerly a building had to be worthy of retention in 
order to be converted and asked if this was still the case. Lydia Mather advised 
that this test was not in the current policy. 

24.Councillor von Celsing asked whether the application would be submitted to the 
District Planning Committee if the Committee were minded to approve planning 
permission. Michael Butler advised that although the application was, in officers’ 
views, contrary to policy C4, it did not fundamentally undermine the policy so it 
would not need to be referred to the District Planning Committee if approved. 
Officers maintained a strong recommendation to refuse planning permission. 

25. In commencing the debate, Councillor Bryant noted that a previous application 
had been refused in 2017 on sound grounds and he did not see how this 
application was so different as to warrant a different determination. He proposed 
that the Committee accept officers; recommendation and refuse planning 
permission. The proposal was seconded by Councillor Beck. 

Page 13



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

26.Councillor von Celsing expressed the view that it was a beautiful site and while 
she could appreciate why the applicants sought to convert the buildings, she 
disagreed with the Ward Member’s opinion.

27.Councillor Pick noted that the buildings were not viable to be used agriculturally 
and he was uncomfortable with the access arrangements. He declared he was 
unconvinced of argument to approve the application. 

28.Councillor Cole opined that there was a safety issue with the access and he 
doubted that the buildings were genuinely redundant. They still had a use as 
private stables. Personally he liked the proposals but was led by the Council’s 
policy. 

29.Michael Butler reminded the Committee that any permission was not personal and 
the site could be sold. The buildings were structurally sound and could be 
converted back to stables. The Committee should consider whether the 
application would conserve and enhance the AONB, preserve its remoteness and 
maintain the areas rural character. 

30.The Chairman invited the Committee to vote on the proposal of Councillor Bryant 
as seconded by Councillor Beck. At the vote the motion was carried. 

RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to refuse 
planning permission for the following reasons:
Reasons:

1. Whilst the stables and land are currently unoccupied or used the application fails 
to demonstrate that the buildings are genuinely redundant and there will not be a 
subsequent request for replacement stables within the blue line of the location 
plan. As such the proposed conversion to residential use is contrary to the 
requirements of Policy C4 of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan 
Document.

2. The proposed residential curtilage would be visually intrusive and have a harmful 
effect on the rural character of the area and its setting within the wider landscape. 
The site is further east than the existing pattern of residential development off 
School Lane and not well related to it. It is set within agricultural land and open to 
the north and east to the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty. The proposed residential curtilage would introduce a formal garden area 
and associated domestic paraphernalia into this rural setting, contrary to Policy C4 
of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document, and Policies ADPP5 
and CS 19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

3. Insufficient information has been submitted with the application to assess the 
ecological impact of the proposed change of use and conversion works to the 
buildings on site to residential use. There may be protected species on site which 
would be impacted upon by the proposed development. As such the proposed 
development is contrary to Policy C4 of the Housing Site Allocations Development 
Plan Document, and Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

(3) Application No. and Parish: 18/01646/HOUSE - Oakville, Ashmore 
Green Road, Ashmore Green, Thatcham

1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(3)) concerning Planning 
Application 18/01646/HOUSE in respect of the removal of a conservatory and 

Page 14



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

replacement with part one part two storey extension at Oakville, Ashmore Green 
Road in Ashmore Green.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Bernard Clark, Parish Council 
representative and Mr and Mrs Mercer, applicants, addressed the Committee on 
this application.

3. Michael Butler introduced the report and update sheet to Members, which took 
account of all the relevant policy considerations and other material considerations. 
In conclusion the report detailed that the proposal was unacceptable and a 
conditional approval was not justifiable. Officers on balance recommended the 
Committee refuse planning permission.

4. Councillor Clark in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The Parish Council unanimously supported the application and had been 
surprised the recommendation was for refusal. 

 Other extensions in the area had been approved although they had a far greater 
impact. 

 The planning officer at the site visit had caused confusion regarding the size of the 
extension. 

 While the parish council had considered the neighbour’s point of view, they had 
formed the view that the proposal would not be overbearing on the neighbour and 
there was a large gap between the houses. 

 Councillor Clive Hooker asked what the parish council had considered to be the 
neighbour’s view of a large extension next door. Councillor Clark advised he saw a 
wall as an advantage over a fence. 

 Mr and Mrs Mercer in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The design adhered to relevant guidelines and the plans had been amended from 
a previous application to reduce the ridge line. 

 Guidance in relation to overshadowing did not relate to secondary windows to the 
side of a property and so should not be considered. A shadow study had been 
completed and while there would be some loss of light, the impact would be 
minimal. 

 There would be a beneficial impact on overlooking as the applicants would no 
longer be able to see into the neighbour’s living room. 

 Of 18 similar applications in the area, none had been refused. 

 The plot could comfortably accommodate the extension and it would not have a 
detrimental impact on the area. 

 Councillor Garth Simpson asked how confident the applicants were about the 
results of the shadow study. Mrs Mercer responded that the architect had used a 
modelling tool and while they accepted there would be some overshadowing it 
would be a minimal amount to secondary windows and none to primary windows. 
Mrs Mercer reported that they had observed the current shadowing on 21 
September 2018 and stated that the modelled impact had been overestimated. 

 Councillor Simpson further asked whether planning officers had been supportive 
or suggested any mitigation measures. Mrs Mercer advised that officers had not 
explained the reason for the recommendation to refuse. 

Page 15



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

 Councillor Pick asked what distance the extension would be from the neighbour’s 
property. Mr Mercer advised it would be 4.2m. Councillor Pick further asked 
whether a figure was available in relation to the loss of light. Mr Mercer advised he 
could not quantify it but the model appeared to be pessimistic based on his 
observations. 

 Councillor Pick enquired upon the difference between this application and the 
previous application refused under delegated powers. Mrs Mercer advised that it 
was the same application and while they had intended to submit an appeal the 
deadline had been missed due to the architect’s personal circumstances. 

 Councillor Adrian Edwards asked why a Juliet balcony had been proposed. Mr 
Mercer advised that it would give the extension a contemporary look and reflect 
the extension of the neighbouring property. 

 Councillor Hooker asked whether the proposals were discussed with the 
neighbour. Mrs Mercer confirmed that an amicable conversation had been held 
before submission of the application. The neighbour had not suggested any 
changes to make the application more palatable and had confirmed they had 
submitted an objection to the applicant via text message. 

 Councillor Simpson in addressing the Committee as Ward Member raised the 
following points:

 The reasons for refusal were sweeping. The design was better than other 
extensions and there was a need to be consistent with other permissions in the 
area. 

 The shadow study and images used in the applicant’s presentation were useful. 

 The proposal had not been accurately described at the site visit. 

 The gap between properties would be maintained and vegetation would offer 
screening.

 The proposal complied with the Council’s policies. 

 Turning to questions to officers, Councillor Clive Hooker requested clarification on 
the distance between properties. Michael Butler advised that the plans he had in 
front of him had been photocopies and were not scalable so would accept the 
applicant’s assertion that the distance was 4.2m. 

 Councillor Bryant asked why the Juliet balcony was considered harmful; Michael 
Butler advised that it would increase the propensity of the occupants to use it as a 
viewpoint compared to a normal window. While overlooking was important it was a 
secondary reason to refuse compared to the overshadowing. 

 Councillor James Cole asked what officers’ reactions were to assertions that the 
proposals were less imposing than other extensions in the area. Michael Butler 
advised that officers had come to a balanced view in making their 
recommendation. 

 Councillor Beck asked whether the Committee were entitled to take into account 
the effect of overshadowing on the secondary windows. Michael Butler advised 
that officers considered that the loss of light to the whole of the neighbour’s 
property was unacceptable. 

 In relation to paragraph 6.3.2 of the committee report, Councillor Simpson 
questioned the assertion that vegetation would not mitigate the harm of 

Page 16



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

overlooking. Michael Butler stated that officers accepted that overlooking was a 
secondary reason for refusal and noted that it would be possible for the applicant 
or any future landowner to cut down trees if they wished. 

 Councillor Simpson further questioned the perceived loss of light described in 
paragraph 6.3.4 of the committee report. Michael Butler advised that the case 
officer had formed a view but the Committee were at liberty to disagree. 

 Councillor Simpson queried the view that there would be a negative impact on the 
street scene when the extension would be to the rear of the property, inset and 
with a lower ridge height than the main house. Michael Butler advised that impact 
on the street scene was not given as a reason for refusal. 

 Councillor Hooker enquired whether the Council undertook its own shadow 
studies. Michael Butler confirmed that planning officers rarely   undertook detailed 
shadow studies as this was time consuming and   they were expensive to contract 
out. 

 Councillor Pick asked officers to quantify the additional overshadowing. Michael 
Butler advised that he was not in a position to offer a figure.

 In commencing the debate, Councillor von Celsing stated that she was surprised 
by the recommendation to refuse and proposed that the Committee reject the 
officers’ recommendation and grant planning permission, subject to appropriate 
conditions. The proposal was seconded by Councillor Pick. 

 Councillor Pick stated that homeowners were entitled to make alterations to their 
properties so long as it was not severely detrimental to others and this application 
was not.

 Councillor Beck stated that he agree with the officers’ recommendations. 

 Councillor Paul Hewer expressed the view that it was a finely balanced case and 
as the objectors had not been present to express their view, he concurred with 
Councillor von Celsing’s proposal. 

 Councillor Simpson expressed the view that the evidence before the Committee 
had increased the grounds to grant planning permission. 

 The Chairman invited the Committee to vote on the proposal of Councillor von 
Celsing as seconded by councillor Pick to reject the officers’ recommendation and 
approve planning permission. At the vote the motion was carried. Councillor Beck 
voted against the proposal and Councillor Edwards abstained from voting. 

RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant subject 
to the following conditions:
Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this consent.
Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the 
development against Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006-2026 should it not be started within a reasonable time.

 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
drawings 345/P01, 02 and  03 received on 15 June 2018.

Page 17



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 10 OCTOBER 2018 - MINUTES

Reason: To accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and for the 
purpose of clarifying what has been approved under this consent in order to 
protect the character of the area.

 The materials to be used in this development shall be as specified on the plans or 
the application forms. 
Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policies CS14 and CS19 
of West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

 The new en-suite window at first floor level in the north elevation shall be fitted 
with obscure glass,  before the extension hereby approved is occupied and the 
obscure glazing shall thereafter be retained in position to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority.  Irrespective of the provisions of the current Town and 
Country Planning (General Development) Order 1995 (or any subsequent 
revision), no further openings shall be inserted within the northern or southern 
elevations of the development.  
Reason: To prevent overlooking of adjoining properties and in the interests of the 
amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2018 and Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006-2026

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 9.35 pm)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….

Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 18



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee    31 October 2018  

Item 
No.

Application No. 
and Parish

8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant

 (1) 18/01657/COND1

Cold Ash Council.

18th June 2018. Approval of details reserved by Condition 4 - 
External Materials Schedule and samples, 7 - 
Construction Method Statement, 8 - Surfacing 
for driveways/access points, 10 - Vehicle 
parking and turning, 11 - Access details, 12 - 
Cycle storage, 13 - Refuse storage and 15 - 
Boundary hedge, of planning permission 
reference 16/02529/OUTD.
Land adjacent to Summerfield, The Ridge, 
Cold Ash. 
T A Fisher and Sons Limited. 

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/01657/COND1 

Member(s): Councillor Garth Simpson

Reason for Committee 
determination:

More than ten objections

Committee Site Visit:

Recommendation.

25th October 2018.

The Head of Development and Planning be authorised 
to GRANT a split decision conditions discharge. 

Contact Officer Details
Name: Susannah Etheridge
Job Title: Senior Planning Officer 
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: susannah.etheridge@westberks.gov.uk

Page 19

Agenda Item 4.(1)

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/01657/COND1
mailto:susannah.etheridge@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee    31 October 2018  

1. Site History

16/02529/OUTD – Approved – Outline application for the erection of five detached dwellings – 
24.10.2017.

18/01977/REM - Refused – 9.10.2018.

2.       Publicity of Application

Site notice displayed 2018. Expiry 2018.
  

3. Consultations and Representations

Cold Ash Parish Council - No comments. 

Highways - Comments with regard to Condition 4 – External 
Materials Schedule and samples, 7 - Construction Method 
Statement, 8 - Surfacing for driveways/access points, 10 - Vehicle 
parking and turning, 11 - Access details, 12 - Cycle storage, 13 - 
Refuse storage and 15 - Boundary hedge of planning permission 
reference 16/02529/OUTD and cycle storage, construction 
management plan, construction method statement.

Representations – 47 received.

4. Policy Considerations

            National Planning Policy Framework 2018.
            National Planning Practice Guidance 2014. 
            West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 2026. 
            Policies ADPP5, CS6, CS9, CS14, CS19.
            West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991 to 2006. Policy OVS6.   

5       Description of development.

5.1. The application seeks the approval and discharge of planning conditions attached to an 
outline planning consent issued under the reference 16/02529/OUTD namely:-

Condition 4 - External Materials Schedule and samples, 7 - Construction Method 
Statement, 8 - Surfacing for driveways/access points, 10 - Vehicle parking and turning, 11 - 
Access details, 12 - Cycle storage, 13 - Refuse storage and 15 - Boundary hedge.

6.       Consideration of the application.

Condition 4 - Materials
Schedule of materials received with the application.
Plot 1
Facing Brick - Michelmersh Freshfield Lane First Quality Multi facings
Timber Boarding - Black
Roof Tile - Marley Acme Red Sandfaced plain tile
Windows and Doors - Timber painted RAL 7015 Slate Grey
Fascias, Soffits & Bargeboards - Timber painted RAL 9005 Jet Black

Page 20



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee    31 October 2018  

Plot 2
Facing Brick - Michelmersh Freshfield Lane First Selected Light
Hanging Tile - Marley Acme Heather Sandfaced
Roof Tile - Marley Acme Farmhouse Brown plain tile
Windows and Doors - Natural Timber
Fascias, Soffits & Bargeboards - Natural Timber

Plot 3
Facing Brick - Michelmersh Freshfield Lane First Quality Multi facings
Roof Tile - Marley Acme Red Sandfaced plain tile
Windows and Doors - Timber painted RAL 7032 Pebble Grey
Fascias, Soffits & Bargeboards - Timber painted RAL 7032 Pebble Grey

Plot 4
Facing Brick - Michelmersh Freshfield Lane First Selected Light
Render - Monocouche Weber PRAL M Chalk & Timer Finish
Roof Tile - Marley Acme Farmhouse Brown plain tile
Windows and Doors - Timber painted RAL 7032 Pebble Grey
Fascias, Soffits & Bargeboards - Timber painted RAL 7032 Pebble Grey

Plot 5
Facing Brick - Michelmersh Freshfield Lane First Quality Multi facings
Render - Monocouche Weber PRAL M Chalk & Timer Finish
Roof Tile - Marley Acme Red Sandfaced plain tile
Windows and Doors - Natural Timber
Fascias, Soffits & Bargeboards - Natural Timber

Rainwater Goods- OSMA Deepflow black Upvc gutters and downpipes
Access Roads - Bitumal surfacing with PCC edging
Private Driveways - Permeable block paving
Paths and Patios - Marshalls Argent Light

The outline permission was for means of access and siting only, with all other matters (including 
external appearance and scale) reserved. The reserved matters details are currently under 
consideration. Whilst the mix and palette of materials proposed, with a variety of materials for each 
dwelling is considered appropriate to this edge of settlement location, details cannot be discharged 
until external appearance and scale details are agreed.

Condition not discharged.

Condition 7 - Construction Method Statement
Construction Method Statement June 2018 Rev B (Twenty-20 Architecture)
Construction Management Plan (2018/P0023 rev C)
Both received by e-mail dated 17August 2018.

Details are acceptable to the Highway Officer providing all parking and deliveries take place within 
the site as specified by the agent in the e-mail dated 17th August.
 
Condition 8 - Surfacing for driveways/access points
Condition 10 - Vehicle parking and turning
Details shown on drawing 2018/0023 12 rev A 
Details provide for a tarmac drive and shared access to the highway with the main driveway area 
surfaced with permeable block paving. Parking and turning within each plot. Note the garages 
shown on the submitted plan are not approved as part of the outline consent nor the subject of the 
refused application seeking approval of reserved matters (18/01977).

Detail acceptable to the Highway Officer.

Page 21



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee    31 October 2018  

Condition 11 - Access details
Details shown on drawing 2018/0023 13, 14 and 15

Details acceptable to the Highway Officer.

Condition 12 - Cycle storage
Details are provided on drawings 2018/0023 08, 09 and 10.
These show garages to the front of plots 1, 2 and 3. The siting of these garages and details (scale 
and external appearance) do not form part of the outline planning permission or reserved matters 
submission. Therefore these details cannot be considered through this condition discharge 
application. There are no details provided for cycle storage for plots 4 and 5 (garages are shown 
on submitted plans for the reserved matters application, however as these details are not yet 
approved they cannot be approved as part of this condition discharge application). 

Details not acceptable to the Highway Officer. Condition 12 cannot be discharged.

Condition 13 - Refuse storage
Details are provided on drawings 2018/0023 08, 09, 10 and 12A. 
Details are acceptable to the Waste Officer. Note the garages shown on the submitted plan are not 
approved as part of the outline consent nor the subject of the refused application seeking approval 
of reserved matters (18/01977).

Condition 15 - Boundary hedge
Details shown on drawing 2018/0023 11 rev B received by e-mail dated 17 August 2018.
Following amendments the details for the southern boundary hedge are acceptable to the Tree 
Officer.

Conclusion
Details pursuant to Conditions 7, 8, 10, 11, 13 and 15 of Planning Permission 16/02529/OUTD can 
be discharged subject to full implementation in accordance with the details submitted and wording 
of each condition. Note the detached garages shown on the submitted plans are not approved as 
part of the outline consent nor the subject of the refused application seeking approval of reserved 
matters (18/01977).

Details pursuant to Condition 4 - Materials and Condition 12 - Cycle Storage are refused as this 
relies on details either not yet agreed as part of the reserved matters application or not approved at 
the outline stage.

7.0      Conclusion 

7.1.     Details pursuant to Conditions 7, 8, 10, 11, 13 and 15 of Planning Permission 
16/02529/OUTD can be discharged subject to full implementation in accordance with the details 
submitted and wording of each condition. Note the detached garages shown on the submitted 
plans are not approved as part of the outline consent nor the subject of the refused application 
seeking approval of reserved matters (18/01977).

Details pursuant to Condition 4 - Materials and Condition 12 - Cycle Storage are refused as this 
relies on details either not yet agreed as part of the reserved matters application or not approved at 
the outline stage.

           
8. Recommendation.                                                                                                    
      
Split decision.

DC

Page 22



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty 's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings .

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

Not Set

18 October 2018

1:8409

18/01657/COND1

Land Adjacent To Summerfield, The Ridge, Cold Ash, RG18 9HT

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31 October 2018

Item   
No

Application No. 
and Parish

8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant

(2) 18/01914/HOUSE
Hampstead 
Norreys

31 August 2018 Two storey side extension

Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead 
Norreys

Mr Lee Clarke

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/01914/HOUSE 

Recommendation Summary: The Head of Development and Planning be 
authorised to GRANT planning permission.

Ward Member(s): Councillor Virginia von Celsing 

Reason for Committee 
determination:

More than 10 letters of objection 

Committee Site Visit: 13 September 2018

Contact Officer Details
Name: Liz Moffat
Job Title: Assistant Planning Officer
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: elizabeth.moffat@westberks.gov.uk

Page 25

Agenda Item 4.(2)

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/01914/HOUSE
mailto:elizabeth.moffat@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31 October 2018

1. Site History - 

18/00861/HOUSE – single storey rear extension and two storey side extension REFUSED 
02.07.18
353/62 – House and garage APPROVED 1962

2. Publicity of Application

Site Notice Expired: 24.08.18

3. Consultations and Representations

Parish Council: Objection: Plans do not show the single storey rear extension being 
constructed; inaccurate plans as property incorrectly aligned with 
existing buildings; too dominant and overbearing; loss in light

Highways:
The whole of the frontage is shown as parking which is acceptable.
The highway recommendation is for conditional approval

Conservation Officer: The proposed extension to this modern detached dwelling has been 
designed to reflect the character, form and scale of the existing 
house. I therefore have no objections, as I do not feel that the proposal 
would cause any harm to the character or appearance of the CA

Environmental Health No objections

Correspondence: 16 letters of objection – concerns over loss of gap, overshadowing, 
imposing, dominant, terraced effect, loss of light, overlooking, 
overdevelopment, out of keeping in a conservation area, potential 
hazard to highway safety.  

6 letters in support of proposal.

4. Policy Considerations

4.1    The statutory development plan comprises the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 
(WBCS) and the saved policies in the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007) (WBDLP). 

4.2 Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:
 The National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)

4.3 The following policies from the West Berkshire Core Strategy are relevant to this 
application:
 Area Delivery Plan Policy 1: Spatial Strategy
 Area Delivery Plan Policy 5: North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

(AONB)
 CS13: Transport
 CS14: Design Principles
 CS19: Historic Environment and Landscape Character

Page 26



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31 October 2018

In addition, the following locally adopted policy documents are relevant to this application:

 Supplementary Planning Document, Quality Design (June 2006)
 Supplementary Planning Guidance, House Extensions (July 2004)

                        
5. Description of Development

5.1. The site lies within the settlement boundary of Hampstead Norreys and its Conservation 
Area, as well as the AONB.  The application site is a 3 bed detached property dating from 
the 1960s which was built to the rear of a pair of period cottages in Church Street, prior to 
the erection of Flint House which lies on the corner of Church Street and Newbury Hill.  
The detached garage has since been linked to the house by a utility room.  An application 
was discussed and refused by Members in June/July 2017 which sought permission to add 
a single storey rear extension and a two storey side extension providing a garage and en-
suite bedroom above.  This application is currently under appeal.
  

5.2. Having determined that permitted development rights allow the construction of a single 
storey rear extension, the applicants have commenced construction of this element.  This 
revised application is for the two storey side extension which has been reduced in size 
including the removal of the dormer window to the rear.  

6. Consideration of the Proposal

The main issues raised by this development are:

6.1. The principle of development
6.2. The design and impact on the character of the area
6.3. The impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties
6.4. The impact on highways and parking

6.1. The principle of development

6.1.1 The application site lies within the settlement boundary of Hampstead Norreys. Within 
settlement boundaries there is a presumption in favour of new residential development 
subject to criteria set out within relevant development plan policies. In particular, policy 
HSG1 seeks to ensure that any new development is appropriate in terms of scale, 
relationship to the character of the area and does not impact general amenity including 
street parking.  Any development must be appropriate in terms of scale, relationship to the 
character of the area and does not impact upon general amenity.

6.2. The design and impact on the character of the area

6.2.1 Through the provisions of the NPPF the government outlines the importance of the design 
of the built environment.  Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy states that new development 
must demonstrate high quality and sustainable design that respects and enhances the 
character and appearance of the area. Policy CS19 seeks to ensure the conservation and 
enhancement of the built and natural environment.

6.2.2 The site is located within the AONB. The NPPF provides AONBs the highest level of 
protection.  Policy ADPP5 of the core strategy states that ‘development will conserve and 
enhance the local distinctiveness, sense of place and setting of the AONB’.  Cherry Hinton 
is set within a group of residential properties and not immediately adjacent to any open 
countryside. The proposals are not therefore considered to have a harmful impact upon the 
landscape quality of the AONB.

Page 27



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31 October 2018

6.2.3 Cherry Hinton also lies within the Hampstead Norreys Conservation Area.  It is set back 
from the highway with the back garden measuring approximately 100 square metres which 
is smaller than the area to the front which is largely used for parking. Ground levels rise 
from east to west such that Cherry Hinton is set slightly higher than the neighbouring 
properties to the east and lower than Elwood to the west, which is set further back within its 
plot.  The properties on the opposite side of Newbury Hill are set closer to the highway.  
The impression is of a village location of relatively low density development with glimpses 
of the surrounding countryside.

6.2.4 The revised side extension has been considered by the case officer as it is currently 
presented, and taking into account the commencement of an extension to the rear. The 
previous committee report made reference to the likelihood that this element was permitted 
development.  The proposed side extension has been further reduced so that the ridge is 
dropped by 750mm and the eaves level is dropped by 1050mm to the rear and 500mm to 
the front.  The rear wall has been set in by a further 550mm.  A roof light replaces the 
original dormer window.  Given that Cherry Hinton is at a slightly higher level, concern was 
raised that the original proposal was not sufficiently subservient to the original dwelling and 
would result in a dominant built form, appearing overbearing to the occupants of No.1 
Church Street who have a small courtyard area as their private amenity area.  These 
changes have not compromised the overall design of the extension which is considered 
acceptable and will appear subservient to the original property.  The scheme is not 
considered to be overly prominent and is not considered to be harmful to the character of 
the area, including the conservation area. 

6.3 The impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties

6.3.1 Planning Policies CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy are of importance 
with regard to the potential impact upon neighbouring amenity. Policy CS 14 requires new 
development to make a positive contribution to the quality of life in West Berkshire. 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on House Extensions outlines the factors to consider 
with regard to impact on neighbouring properties.

6.3.2 It is considered that the primary impact of the development would be to the neighbours to 
the eastern side, particularly Nos. 1 and 2 Church Street.  The smaller scheme for the two 
storey addition is considered to further reduce the any perceived overbearing and the 
removal of the dormer window reduces the increase in built form.  As such, the impact on 
the private amenity area to the rear of these neighbours is further reduced.  

6.4 The impact on highways and parking  

6.4.1 The area to the front of the property is shown as parking which is acceptable subject to a 
condition to ensure this is safeguarded.  Due to the close proximity of the school and the 
junction at Water Street/Newbury Street/Church Street deliveries must be made outside of 
peak times on the highway network and morning and afternoon school pick up times  – this 
must be specified within a Construction Method Statement

7.   Community Infrastructure Levy

7.1 The increase in internal floor space of the proposed house extension is less than 100m2. 
Under the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by West Berkshire 
Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations, house extensions 
of less than 100m2 are not liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy.

The NPPF places a strong emphasis on sustainable development.  All planning 
applications must result in sustainable development with consideration being given to 
economic, social and environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal.  Being a house 

Page 28



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31 October 2018

extension the scheme has limited economic and social considerations.  The environmental 
considerations have been assessed in terms of design, amenity and impact on the 
character of the area.  As these have been found acceptable the development is 
considered to constitute sustainable development.

8. Conclusion

8.1. Having taken account of all relevant policy considerations and the material considerations 
referred to above, it is considered that the development proposed is acceptable and 
conditional approval is justifiable for the following reasons:  It is not considered that this 
proposal would demonstrably harm the amenity of adjoining residential properties and 
accords with guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and  
Policies CS14 and 19 of West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 which requires that all 
development demonstrates high quality and sustainable design that respects the character 
and appearance of the area and safeguards the amenities of adjoining occupiers.  

9. Full Recommendation

9.1 The Head of Development and Planning be authorised to GRANT permission subject to the 
following conditions:-

1.  The development of the extension shall be started within three years from the date of 
this permission and implemented strictly in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the 
development against Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-
2026 should it not be started within a reasonable time.

2.  The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the site 
location plan, block plan and drawing 206-04 received on 6 July 2018.
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is constructed in accordance with the submitted 
details assessed against Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
2006-2026.

3.  The materials to be used in this development shall be as specified on the plans or the 
application forms. 

Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policies CS14 and CS19 of West 
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

4. The development shall not be brought into use until the vehicle parking and/or 
turning space have been surfaced, marked out and provided in accordance with the 
approved plan(s).  The parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for 
parking (of private motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in order to 
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road safety and the 
flow of traffic.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2018, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

5. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The statement shall provide 
for:

Page 29



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31 October 2018

(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d) Time of deliveries
(e) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(f) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the 
interests of highway safety.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2018, Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-
2006 (Saved Policies 2007). 

6. No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours:

- 8:00am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
- 8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
- nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This condition 
is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policy CS14 
of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

7. Irrespective of the provisions of the current Town and Country Planning (General 
Development) Order 2015 (or any subsequent revision), no further openings shall be 
inserted in the side elevations of the development.  

Reason: To prevent overlooking of adjoining properties and in the interests of the 
amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2018 and Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
2006-2026.

DC
           

Page 30



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty 's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings .

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

Not Set

07 September 2018

1:7351

18/01914/HOUSE

Cherry Hinton, Newbury Hill, Hampstead Norreys,RG18 0TR

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

Item 
No.

Application No. 
and Parish

8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant

(3) 18/02019/COMIND

Newbury Town  
Council

13th November 
2018

Newbury Manor Hotel
London Road
Newbury 
Berkshire 
RG14 2BY

Extension and alteration of existing cottage to 
create hotel restaurant with outdoor seating 
terrace, condenser unit to side and roof-
mounted extract

SCP Newbury Manor Ltd

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/02019/COMIND  
 
Ward Member(s): Councillor J Beck 

Councillor D Goff

 
Reason for Committee 
determination:

Councillor Beck has called the application to Committee 
should the application be recommended for approval

Committee Site Visit:

Recommendation.

25th October 2018. 

The Head of Development and Planning be authorised 
to GRANT planning permission. 

Contact Officer Details
Name: Mr. Matthew Shepherd 
Job Title: Senior Planning Officer 
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: Matthew. Shepherd@westberks.gov.uk

Page 33

Agenda Item 4.(3)

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=18/02019/COMIND
mailto:Matthew.%20Shepherd@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

1. Relevant Site History

1.1. 01/2511/FUL. Proposed extension and alterations to existing hotel to provide additional 
bedrooms and function room. Withdrawn 17.06.2002

1.2. 01/02514/LBC. Proposed bedroom extension and function room. Withdrawn 24.06.2002

1.3. 02/02208/FULMAJ. Proposed extension and alterations to existing hotel to provide additional 
bedrooms and function room. Plus change of use of additional land to car park. Withdrawn 
20.01.2003.

1.4. 02/02222/LBC. Proposed extension and alterations to existing hotel to provide additional 
land to car parking. Withdrawn 20.01.2003

1.5. 03/00062/FULLMAJ. Proposed extension and alterations to existing Hotel to provide 
additional bedrooms and function room and ancillary parking. Approved 05.08.2004

1.6. 03/00075/LBC. Proposed bedroom extension and function room. Approved 23.04.2003.

1.7. 06/02011/FUL. Retrospective- New timber deck and balustrade to riverside restaurant. 
Refused. 31.10.2006

1.8. 06/02012/LBC2. Retrospective- New timber deck and balustrade to riverside restaurant. 
Refused. 31.10.2006

1.9. 06/02812/FUL. New timber deck and balustrade to riverside bar. Approved 15.02.2007

1.10. 06/02813/LBC2. New timber deck and balustrade. Approved 15.02.2007

1.11. 10/02937/FUL. Retrospective- Single storey extension to existing function room. Approved 
12.04.2011

1.12. 10/02938/LBC. Single storey extension to existing function room. Approved 12.04.201

1.13. 15/00991/FUL. Removal of single storey 70’s flat roofed building attached to the original 
watermill and blacksmiths. Withdrawn 02.07.2015.

1.14. 15/00991FUL. Removal of the single storey70’s flat roofed building attached to the original 
watermill and blacksmiths brick building and the construction of a new flat roof Oak framed 
building to replace the building removed. The extent of the proposed new building is to 
extend in to the lagoon. Withdrawn 02.07.2015

1.15. 15/00992/LBC. Removal of the single storey70’s flat roofed building attached to the original 
watermill and blacksmiths brick building and the construction of a new flat roof Oak framed 
building to replace the building removed. The extent of the proposed new building is to 
extend in to the lagoon. Withdrawn 02.07.2015

1.16. 16/01171/FUL. Two storey rear extension to hotel following removal of conservatory and 
outbuildings 912 net additional rooms); elevational improvements; internal alterations; 
permeable paving of car park. Approved 07/10/2016

1.17. 16/01172/LBC2. Two storey rear extension to hotel following removal of conservatory and 
outbuildings 912 net additional rooms); elevational improvements; internal alterations; 
permeable paving of car park. Approved 07/10/2016.

Page 34



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

1.18. 16/002902/FUL. Extension of hotel cottage to create hotel restaurant with outdoor seating 
terrace. Withdrawn 07.03.2017.

1.19. 16/002903/LBC2. Extension of hotel cottage to create hotel restaurant with outdoor seating 
terrace. Withdrawn 07.03.2017.

1.20. 17/00865/COND. Approval of details reserved by condition 3: Removal of spoil, 4: 
Construction Method Statement, 8: Landscape Management plan, 9: Arboricultural watching 
brief, of planning permission 16/01171/FUL - Two storey rear extension to hotel following 
removal of conservatory and outbuildings (12 net additional rooms); elevational 
improvements; internal alterations; permeable paving of car park. Spilt decision 23.06.2017.

1.21. 17/00866/COND. Approval of details reserved by Conditions 3: Schedule of materials and 6: 
Windows/doors, of planning permission 16/01172/LBC - Two storey rear extension to hotel 
following removal of conservatory and outbuildings (12 net additional rooms); elevational 
improvements; internal alterations; permeable paving of car park. Approved 30.08.2017

1.22. 17/03223/FUL.  Erection of plant room and substation. Approved 08/06/2018 

1.23. 17/03232/FUL. Section 73 -Application for variation of Condition (2) - Approved plans of 
planning permission 16/01171/FUL. Approved 08.06.2018

1.24. 17/03233/LBC. Sec 19 - Application for variation of condition (2) Approved plans of planning 
permission 16/01172/LBC. Approved 08.06.2018 

1.25. 17/03237/COMIND. Extension and alteration of existing cottage to create hotel restaurant 
with outdoor seating terrace, wall-mounted condenser unit and roof-mounted extract. 
Refused 08.06.2018

1.26. 17/03238/LBC2. Extension and alteration of existing cottage to create hotel restaurant with 
outdoor seating terrace, wall-mounted condenser unit and roof-mounted extract. Approved 
08.08.2018 

1.27. Full planning history available on file. 

2. Publicity of Application

2.1. This application was advertised by way of Site Notice to which was posted to the front 
entrance of the Hotel site on 20th September 2018 and expired on 11th October 2018.  

3. Consultations and Representations

Consultations

Newbury Town 
Council 

No objection.  The concerns with the previous refused application 
17/03237 appear to have been addressed.

Highways 1. Proposal

According to the information submitted, the following is proposed.

 Total floor area of the restaurant to be 585 sqm
 10 full time and 15 part time staff are proposed
 Maximum of 20 restaurant staff at busiest period – Saturday 

evening
 Previously the restaurant employed 15 staff
 Increase in car parking to 121 spaces; includes 4 disabled 

Page 35



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

parking spaces
 4 motorcycle spaces
 10 new cycle stands
 34 bedrooms within the existing hotel
 Additional 15 bedrooms (subject of planning applications)
 Census data 2011 for this area identifies that 65% of staff 

travel is by private vehicle

This application follows refused planning application 
17/03273/COMIND.  

2. Access

It is proposed that the existing access onto the A4 will be utilised 
which is acceptable.

3. Car Parking

This current application now proposes 121 car parking spaces.  

The hotel and events are already provided/permitted.  There is also a 
small bar area within the hotel.  This proposal is for the proposed 
restaurant and additional car parking.  

According to the floor plans the following number of diners could be 
accommodated:

 110 covers internally;
 40 covers externally;
 There is also a private dining area seating 12.

162 covers (internal and external) equates to around 3 covers per 
vehicle if all diners travelled by private vehicle, which is unlikely to be 
the case.  In reality the spaces would be shared across the site.

Table 5.2 of the Transport Statement (TS) identifies that a maximum 
of 49 car parking spaces could be required for hotel guests at 100% 
occupancy and if all guests travelled by car.  This is likely to be a rare 
occurrence if at all.  

There could be up to 20 restaurant staff at peak times – Saturday 
evenings.  It was established on the 2016 application that at this time 
there could be around 5 hotel staff.  Assuming 65% of staff would 
travel by private car, as per the 2011 Census data, this could create a 
demand for around 16 staff vehicles.    

Therefore with 49 spaces for hotel guests, 16 vehicles for staff, this 
would leave around 56 spaces for diners at the restaurant or for 
(existing) events.  

The Transport Statement includes data gathered from TRICS and 
surveys undertaken within Newbury.

According to the data obtained from TRICS, Table 5.4 and paragraph 
5.7.15 identify that the restaurant would require 23 car parking spaces 
on weekdays at busiest periods, and 28 car parking spaces at 
weekend peak times (Table 5.6 and paragraph 5.7.20). 

Page 36



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

It is noted at paragraph 5.7.21 that the TRICS data is derived from 
restaurant only sites rather than hotel and restaurants where parking 
could be shared between the two.

Table 7.2 on page 20 suggests that 52 spaces are required for the 
hotel on non-event days at weekends, with 75 required for event days 
at weekends, this would leave 46 spaces for the restaurant.

This current application includes a survey of parking spaces at other 
hotels within Newbury that also contain a restaurant.  It was 
established that the average number of parking spaces per bedroom 
across the 5 surveyed hotels is 1.58 (Table 5.9 on page 17 of the 
Transport Statement – TS) with the average number of parking 
spaces per bedroom at the Newbury Manor Hotel being 2.6. 

No assessment has been undertaken at peak times e.g. Saturday 
evenings.

Summary of car parking

The hotel is already operating from this site.  Recent/current 
applications could see the number of bedrooms increase to 49 (if 
approved).  Events are currently permitted from this site and there is 
small bar within the hotel building.  This application proposes a new 
restaurant with additional car parking spaces.

West Berkshire Council does not have current car parking standards 
for A3 use and so applications such as this are assessed on their own 
merits.

Given all of the above and the information accompanying this 
application, it is the view of the highway authority that, with the 
increased car parking now proposed, it would be difficult to now object 
to this application on these grounds.  

4. Motor Cycle Parking and Cycle Storage

I am satisfied with the levels proposed.

5. Vehicle Trips

This proposal will see an increase in vehicle movements.  It is noted 
that during the AM peak there should be no increase.  In the PM peak 
period there could be an increase of around 27 two-way movements 
(paragraph 8.1.1).  However, given this site is accessed directly onto 
the A4 this is a negligible increase. 

6. Recommendation

The increase in car parking for this site is much welcomed and is a 
requirement of this application.  The highway recommendation is for 
conditional approval as set out in my email response. 

Sustainable Drainage 
Team 

Having reviewed the application, we note that the proposals in terms 
of surface water management are broadly in accordance with previous 
proposals at the site, however, the proposals are to change the 
existing gravel car park to permeable block paviours. We consider 

Page 37



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

these amended proposals to be acceptable.

If LPA is minded to approve the application, we request that a 
condition is attached to the application to ensure that flood risk is 
appropriately managed for the lifetime of the proposed development.

Environment Agency The Environments Agency have at the time of writing not responded 
to the council’s consultation. They raised no objections to the previous 
application and their response is as follows that was submitted for the 
site and proposal previously;

The proposed development will be acceptable if a planning condition 
is included requiring a scheme to be agreed to ensure that the 
landscape within the site is managed in such a way as to protect and 
enhance the ecological value of the site including the River Lambourn 
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC)

This condition is necessary to ensure the protection of wildlife and 
supporting habitat and secure opportunities for the enhancement of 
the nature conservation value of the site in line with national planning 
policy. 

This condition is supported by the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), paragraph 109 which recognises that the 
planning system should aim to conserve and enhance the natural and 
local environment by minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing 
net gains in biodiversity where possible, contributing to the 
Government’s commitment to halt the overall decline in biodiversity, 
including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more 
resilient to current and future pressures. Paragraph 118 of the NPPF 
also states that opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and around 
developments should be encouraged.

Archaeology Given the nature of the application as a resubmission the 
Archaeologist was content her previous comments still applied as 
follows. 

Mill Waters Cottage was apparently created in the 1930s out of part of 
a historic courtyard building at the former Newbury Mill (also Ham 
Saw Mills). Although the cottage contains some historic fabric, and is 
also quite attractive as an early 20th century conversion, it has been 
altered on more than one occasion. The proposals will retain the 
existing cottage although alter it further. 

The proposed restaurant is also within an area of ‘high’ to ‘highest’ 
potential for Mesolithic archaeology or palaeo-environmental 
evidence, but our previous advice was that the site would have been 
disturbed by the construction of buildings during the late 19th and 
early 20th century. Evidence suggests that there will be no major 
impact on any features of archaeological significance. 

I do not, therefore, believe that any archaeological assessment or 
programme of investigation and recording will be necessary in relation 
to the current proposal.

Page 38



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

Conservation  Mill Waters Cottage was constructed in the first half of the C20th 
within the curtilage of the Grade II listed Newbury Manor Hotel.  It has 
undergone a number of alterations and extensions in the C20th and 
C21st.

Given the fact that it pre-dates 1948 and that there was a functional 
and physical relationship between the principal listed building and the 
cottage at the time of listing, the building is considered to be curtilage 
listed.  

The application is almost identical in form and design to the recently 
approved listed building consent application 17/03238/LBC2. 

My comments on the previous application therefore still apply:

The application proposes to extend Mill Waters Cottage and convert it 
into a restaurant for the hotel.  The extension is located to the rear 
and will combine a traditional brick and tiled gabled structure to mirror 
the existing cottage, as well as an extensive contemporary glazed 
section.  The glazed structure will form a low profile link between the 
existing and proposed brick elements.

The extension has been designed in a contemporary idiom with a 
lightweight profile, made possible by the use of fully glazed elevations 
and a shallow pitched glass roof.  Whilst the proposed extension 
covers quite an extensive footprint, it does not dominate the main 
house, instead it allows the original cottage to remain the focal point.   

The application also proposes removing the existing C21st lean to 
porch, which spans across two thirds of the front elevation with a 
smaller, more traditional porch.  I consider that this is a positive 
alteration that will enhance the principal elevation of the cottage.  

The design of the proposal is well considered and I do not feel that it 
would cause any harm to the character of this curtilage listed building 
or the setting of the principal Grade II listed hotel building.

Newbury Society No response received by 18th October 2018.   

Environmental Health I have reviewed the submitted revised application and summary of 
changes as set out in the covering letter from the applicant

Noise
There have been a number of changes to address concerns about the 
impact on residential amenity as follows:

1) Clarification that there will be a 2m high barrier at the east end 
of the terrace to protect residents in Two Rivers Way from 
noise from the restaurant / terrace.

2) There will be a 2.5m high acoustic barrier around externally 
mounted plant.

3) The condenser unit will no longer be wall-mounted but will be 
placed within a separate enclosure

The report gives specific recommendations on the noise mitigation 
measures that will be required which, if followed should prevent any 
negative impact on residential amenity.

Page 39



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

I recommend the following conditions. 
Canal and Rivers 
Trust 

No comments received 18/10/2018.

Kennet and Avon 
Canal Trust 

No comments received 18/10/2018.

Ecology Thanks for this (consultation) and it is nice to see the updated reports.

My previous comments still apply however only the lighting and the 
provision of the swift boxes need to be conditioned.

I note that the ecology information is dated December 2015. 

Standing advice from Natural England is that surveys should not be 
over 2 – 3 years old for medium to high impact schemes.  (Natural 
England – Standing Advice for Protected Species)  

However, since this site is adjacent to a SAC and SSSI and has the 
potential to impact on a number of species it is worth having a refresh 
done especially as the land has been vacant for several breeding 
seasons and new species might have migrated in.

I note that the Water Vole survey was updated in 2016 and again in 
2017 and therefore does not need to be done again.

Updated ecology reports were submitted to the LPA, to which were 
reviewed by the LPA’s ecologist. Thank you for consulting Ecology 
with this updated information. If you are minded to approve please 
apply conditions.

Regarding the recent objection on ecological grounds; Bats and Water 
Voles.

The Bat survey done in 2018 clearly shows that there are no bat 
roosts in the building or in the surrounding trees that is impacted by 
the proposed development and the proposed mitigation measures 
with regards to lighting will preserve the area as a feeding area.

With regards to the in season studies Bats can be active all year 
round.  I suspect what is being called for is emergence and surveys 
which are normally conducted at dawn or dusk between April and 
September during which time Bats usually hibernate.  

In addition, tree roosts can be assessed all year round and often when 
the foliage is absent it is easier to spot cavities in trees that could 
provide a roost.

However, as the application is related to a building it is still possible to 
undertake a physical survey of the buildings during winter months by 
searching droppings, food remains, smell and grease marks for 
example.  It is therefore my opinion that it is not reasonable to require 
3 emergence /re-emergence surveys.

With regards Water Voles again the recent survey May 2017 found no 
evidence of Water Voles and went to some length to describe why.  
With regards to timing the May survey was undertaken during the 
recommended survey period which is between mid-April and late 

Page 40



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

September.  

The study area was suitable for the application and the additional 
photo of a water vole appears to have been taken outside of this study 
area.  However, the mitigation measures proposed are suitable.

The case quoted involved the authority not taking due consideration 
and not proposing mitigation measure, this is clearly not the case with 
this application.  The ecologists report clearly does consider the 
priority species around the site and the even though none are directly 
affected the proposed mitigation measures as a precautionary 
principle are suitable. 

Natural England Following receipt of further information on 16/05/2018, Natural 
England is satisfied that the specific issues we have raised in previous 
correspondence relating to this development have been resolved. 
We therefore consider that the identified impacts on the River 
Lambourn SSSI/ SAC can be appropriately mitigated with measures 
secured via planning conditions as advised and withdraw our 
objection. The planning conditions are as follows: 

- That the site is connected to the public foul drainage system as 
mentioned in the letter dated 9th May 2018 and that foul water will not 
be dealt with through a package treatment plant or septic tank. 
- That the construction activities will be undertaken in a way which will 
avoid any detrimental impact on the adjacent SSSI/SAC e.g. from 
dust, spillages, polluted runoff etc. Measures will be put in place to 
ensure no sediment or polluted runoff enters the river when 
undertaking activities such as wheel washing, refuelling of machinery, 
storing materials etc. Best practice and Environmental standards will 
be adhered to and specific details regarding where certain activities 
will take place on site, such as the storage of materials etc, will be 
included in the final CEMP. 

- That a long term SUDs maintenance plan will be provided. The 
information provided in the technical note document is not detailed 
enough to reassure our concerns. Natural England would like to see a 
SUDs maintenance plan as requested in our letter dated 17th 
November 2016. This should include timescales of regular checks and 
details of the maintenance specific to the types of SUDs that will be 
used onsite. If the SUDs are not properly maintained and therefore 
fail, the River Lambourn SSSI/SAC is likely to be affected. 
- That a buffer zone between the river bank and the construction 
footprint of at least 8m will be retained and clearly marked by both a 
visual and physical barrier thus preventing materials, machinery or 
work from encroaching onto the SSSI/SAC either before, during or 
after demolition or construction as mentioned in the draft CEMP. The 
buffer zone will be maintained as an undisturbed riparian corridor. 
This point is linked to our request in our letter dated 17th November 
2016 about considering how the development will be undertaken that 
ensures no altered hydrogeology will occur.

Tree Officer Observations:

There are a number of significant mature trees that are affected by the 
proposals, they are all protected under the Conservation Area status. 

Page 41



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

The submitted arboricultural information prepared by Ian Murat of A C 
S Consulting dated July 2018 and Landscape planting plan dated July 
2018 is considered to be adequate for the purpose of determining this 
application as far as tree and landscape implications are concerned.  
The increase of the boundary landscaping on the eastern side is 
welcomed and reduces the impact of the development on the retained 
trees.

Recommendation:

I raise no objection to this development subject to the following 
conditions

Thames Water 
Utilities Company

N Waste Comments: 
Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained 
fat trap on all catering establishments. We further recommend, in line 
with best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oils and Grease, the 
collection of waste oil by a contractor, particularly to recycle for the 
production of bio diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations 
may result in this and other properties suffering blocked drains, 
sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses.

With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water would advise 
that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the disposal of 
surface water we would have no objection. Where the developer 
proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames 
Water Developer Services will be required. Should you require further 
information please refer to our website.  
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-
and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services

Thames Water would advise that with regard to waste water network 
and waste water process infrastructure capacity, we would not have 
any objection to the above planning application, based on the 
information provided

Water Comments:
On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise 
that with regard to water network and water treatment infrastructure 
capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning 
application. Thames Water recommends the following informative be 
attached to this planning permission. Thames Water will aim to 
provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 
bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves 
Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this 
minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development.

Disability Access 
Officer  

All doors to accessible toilets and bathrooms should open out 
wards.

Housing 
Development Team, 
PROW, Ramblers 
Association,  

No response received as at 18/10/2018.

Page 42

https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services


West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

1. Representations

1.1. The Local Planning Authority received 7 representations to which 6 were objections and 1 
was in support of the application. 

1.2. The matters raised in the letters of objection (summarised by officer) are:

- The proposed development would be to the detriment of residents and wildlife in the vicinity 
of the development. 

- It is an inappropriate location for this type of venue 
- It will affect the quality of life and make the area very unpleasant to live in for neighbouring 

residential 
- The Noise disturbance from car noises such as doors opening and closing and engines 

starting up will have an adverse impact on the quietness of the area. Additionally the impact 
from deliveries and refuge collections will add to this. 

- An increase in air and light pollution levels will occur from the increased vehicle movements 
- The likely increase in anti-social behaviour 
- The poor boundary treatments proposed. 
- The Noise impact assessments do not account for what objectors believe to be the most 

harmful noise issue of the proposal the users of the restaurant and hotel site.
- The Covering letter refers to Two Rivers Way as Three Rivers way, this is a worrying lack 

of attention to detail. 
- The Ash Tree on the plan is still not located correctly. 
- There are discrepancies in regards to floor space measurements.
- The objectors have submitted images of Water voles close to the site and Bats flying over 

the site.  
- The changes made since the previous refusal do not go far enough to deal with the 

previous refusal reasons. 
- No meaningful local engagement was undertaken
- The application quotes the name “Coppa Club” to which would suggest the use is more 

than just a “restaurant extension”
- The lack of planting to the north of the site to protect neighbouring flats should be 

addressed. 
- There is likely to be an increase in flood risk in the areas given the replacement of an 

extensive area of scrubland/grass with hard surface will reduce absorption and increase 
surface runoff. 

- The objectors urged the full review of the application and not focus solely on the previous 
issues on the site and give due weight to the long term social and environmental impact 
that the proposed development will have. 

One letter of support of the application supports the proposal because of the benefit it will bring to 
Newbury through commerce, competition, and employment. 

2.       Planning Policy Considerations

2.1. The statutory development plan comprises:

• West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026)
• Housing Site Allocations DPD
• West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007)
• Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire (2001)
• Waste Local Plan for Berkshire (1998)

2.2. The following policies from the West Berkshire Core Strategy carry full weight and are 
relevant to this application:

• Area Delivery Plan Policy 1: Spatial Strategy

Page 43



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

• Area Delivery Plan Policy 2: Newbury
• CS 5: Infrastructure requirements and delivery
• CS 11: Hierarchy of Centres
• CS 13: Transport
• CS 14: Design Principles
• CS 16: Flooding
• CS 17: Biodiversity and Geodiversity
• CS 18: Green Infrastructure
• CS 19: Historic Environment and Landscape Character

2.3. The West Berkshire Core Strategy replaced a number of Planning Polices in the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 Saved Policies 2007.  However the following 
Policies remain in place until they are replaced by future development plan documents and 
should be given due weight according to their degree of consistency with the National 
Planning Policy Framework:

• TRANS1: Meeting the Transport Needs of New development.
• OVS5: Environmental Nuisance and Pollution Control.
• OVS.6: Noise Pollution

2.4. The following Housing Site Allocations Development Plan document policies carry full 
weight and are relevant to this application:

• C1: Location of New Housing in the Countryside
• P1: Residential Parking for New Development

2.5. Other material considerations for this application include:

• The National Planning Policy Framework (2018), (NPPF)
• Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)
• Quality Design Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

3.  Proposal
   

3.1. The application proposes the Extension and alteration of existing cottage to create hotel 
restaurant with outdoor seating terrace, condenser unit to side and roof-mounted extract. 
The proposed development is to extend the existing dwelling in the grounds of the Hotel, to 
the east by around 16 metres and to the south by 17 metres approx. in amongst other 
smaller extensions. An external seating area is proposed to the south adjoining the river 
Lambourn. 

3.2. The site is located adjacent to the River Lambourn which is a site of Significant Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) and a Special Area of Conservation (SAC). The dwelling itself is not listed 
but is listed by virtue of being within the curtilage of the Grade II listed building of Newbury 
Manor Hotel. The proposed development also falls within a Conservation Area and within 
the defined settlement boundary of Newbury Town.  

Determining issues:

 The Principle of Development;
 The Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area;
 The Impact on Neighbouring Amenity;
 The Impact on Highway safety;
 Drainage and flooding;
 Ecology of the Site; 
 Archaeology of the Site;
 Community Infrastructure Levy.

Page 44



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

4.       The Principle of Development

4.1. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) makes clear that the starting point for all 
decision making is the development plan, and planning law requires that applications for 
planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The current development plan for West 
Berkshire comprises the West Berkshire Core Strategy, the Saved Policies of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan and the West Berkshire Housing Site Allocations Development 
Plan Document. 

4.2. The NPPF is a material consideration in the planning process. It places sustainable 
development at the heart of the planning system including the need to support sustainable 
economic growth. The first core planning principle set out in the NPPF is that planning 
should be genuinely plan led. 

4.3. The proposed development at Mill Waters Cottage, Newbury Manor Hotel, London Road, 
Newbury, is within the settlement boundary of Newbury, as defined within The West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and the West Berkshire Housing Site Allocations DPD 
(November 2017). 

4.4. Being within the settlement boundary and within an established commercial hotel site the 
principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable. The dwelling to be 
converted has been used by the hotel for staff accommodation and various ‘back room’ uses 
according to the Design and Access Statement (DAS). The proposed development being 
within the settlement boundary as directed by ADPP1 and ADPP2 is also situated on 
previously developed land. The proposed use would accord with the existing nature of the 
site and there are other commercial mixed use of the A4 London Road which contains a 
number of different restaurants and uses such as The Swan Pub and the ‘Toby Carvery’ 
which share a similar relationship to the surrounding uses as this development. 

4.5. The proposed development would create 10 full time jobs and 15 part times jobs according 
to the application form. The development would therefore create jobs in a sustainable 
location with good transports links within West Berkshire. 

4.6. Although the principle of development is acceptable the permission can only be granted 
subject to the proposal otherwise being in accordance with development plan policies on 
design, impact on the character of the area, and impact on the amenity of neighbouring land 
uses and other key issues.

5.       The Character and Appearance of the Area 

5.1. Planning Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 - 2026 are 
relevant to this application. Policy CS14 states that new development must demonstrate 
high quality and sustainable design that respects and enhances the character and 
appearance of the area, and makes a positive contribution to the quality of life in West 
Berkshire. It further states that design and layout must be informed by the wider context, 
having regard not just to the immediate area, but to the wider locality. Development shall 
contribute positively to local distinctiveness and sense of place. Proposals are expected to 
make efficient use of land whilst respecting the density, and character of the area.

5.2. Policy CS19 seeks to conserve and enhance the diversity and local distinctiveness of the 
landscape character of the District by considering the natural, cultural and functional 
components of its character as a whole. Particular regard will be given to the sensitivity of 
the area to change and to ensuring that new development is appropriate in terms of location, 
scale and design in the context of the existing settlement form, pattern and character.

Page 45



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

5.3. Mill Waters Cottage was constructed in the first half of the C20th within the curtilage of the 
Grade II listed Newbury Manor Hotel.  It has undergone a number of alterations and 
extensions in the C20th and C21st. Given the fact that it pre-dates 1948 and that there 
was a functional and physical relationship between the principal listed building and the 
cottage at the time of listing, the building is considered to be curtilage listed.  

5.4. The extension has been designed in a contemporary idiom with a lightweight profile, made 
possible by the use of fully glazed elevations and a shallow pitched glass roof.  Whilst the 
proposed extension covers quite an extensive footprint, it does not dominate the main 
house, instead it allows the original cottage to remain the focal point.   

5.5. The application proposes to extend Mill Waters Cottage and convert it into a restaurant for 
the hotel.  The extension is located to the rear and will combine a traditional brick and tiled 
gabled structure to mirror the existing cottage, as well as an extensive contemporary 
glazed section.  The glazed structure will form a low profile link between the existing and 
proposed brick elements

5.6. The application also proposes removing the existing C21st lean to porch, which spans 
across two thirds of the front elevation with a smaller, more traditional porch.  The 
Conservation Officer consider that this is a positive alteration that will enhance the 
principal elevation of the cottage.  

5.7. Given the location of the extraction units on the roof it will not be visible from ground level 
so will have limited impact on the character of the building or the character of the area.  
The addition of the acoustic barriers within this application do not raise concerns in 
regards to their impact on the design of the proposal and the listed building. They are 
directed discreetly to an area to the rear of the site not detracting from the setting of the 
listed building and where this feature will be associated with the service area of proposed 
restaurant. 

5.8. The design of the proposal is well considered and overall the Conservation Officer and 
Planning Officer do not feel it would cause any harm to the character of this curtilage 
listed building or the setting of the principal Grade II listed hotel building.

5.9. In light of the above the case officer does not feel that the proposal would harm the setting 
of this Grade II listed building or the Conservation area, the Conservation Officer is in 
agreement with this assessment. Conditions have been recommended should approval be 
given. 

5.10. It is considered the proposed development would not adversely affect the character and 
appearance of the area in accordance with the provisions of Core Strategy policies 
ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14, CS19 and the NPPF.

6.  The Neighbouring Amenity

6.1. Securing a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and 
buildings is one of the core planning principles of the NPPF. Policy CS14 of the Core 
Strategy states that new development must make a positive contribution to the quality of 
life in West Berkshire. SPD Quality Design - West Berkshire outlines considerations to be 
taken into account with regard to residential amenity, and Policy OVS.6 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies considers the potential noise impact of 
development. This policy requires appropriate measures to be taken in the location, 
design, layout and operation of development to minimise any adverse impact as a result 
of noise generated form the proposal. 

6.2. The impact on the neighbouring amenity has been an area of strong objection within 
representation letters. A number of objection areas have been submitted to the LPA, 

Page 46



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

these relate in the majority to noise emitted from the restaurant, the external seating 
areas, deliveries and the noise from the associated car parking in amongst other matters.

6.3. Noise from the restaurant has been considered in the Cole Jarmen Noise Impact 
Assessment (NIA) Report 16/0017/RO1// Revision 1. Initial objection was raised in 
regards to some of the assumptions made in earlier NIA’s however this document was 
reviewed. The assessment contained within revision 6 makes the assumption of all people 
at a 4 person table would speak at the same time, allowing for the worst case scenario to 
be presented. The figures presented in this report with this assumption, show a ‘not 
significant’ increase in noise at the site. This does not present an adverse impact from 
noise generated by the restaurant and external seating area and therefore Environmental 
Health officers were content with the impact. The internal noise levels have been 
generated without music (T6 Page 11 of the NIA report version 6). Therefore a restricting 
condition on certain music being played in the premises is warranted until further details 
have been submitted. The external seating area noise levels took into account the 
acoustic fence to the east of the seating area which was demonstrated to reduce the 
noise impact on neighbouring amenity. 

6.4. The development has sought to orientate the external seating areas, and doors away from 
neighbouring properties to reduce the noise impact on neighbouring amenity. It is 
considered the design has been carefully considered and the NIA shows ‘Not Significant’ 
increase in noise levels from the restaurant on neighbouring dwellings. This evidence in 
combination with planning conditions, EH legislation and licensing will protect and 
guarantee the development will have an appropriate level of impact on the neighbouring 
amenity from the existing commercial site.

6.5. Noise from deliveries is an area of impact on neighbouring amenity. The revised NIA in 
section 8 addresses this area of impact. It concludes that the existing ambient levels next 
to the A4 on an established commercial site are such that the deliveries to the restaurant 
will not give a significant increase in noise impact over the existing situation. The EH team 
agree with this assessment, but do note that the deliveries and waste collections will be 
limited to times between 0900 and 1800, which can be secured by condition.  

6.6. A very specific area of objection was the disposal of glass bottles and the adverse impact 
this can have on amenity from a particularly disruptive operation of the restaurant. It has 
been proposed that a ‘glass buster’ be used which breaks the bottles in smaller pieces in 
the restaurant area and deposits these into plastic tubs, to be stored until waste is 
collected. This would be considered an appropriate mitigation method to the noise and a 
condition requiring more specific details of this operation and machinery have been 
recommended. 

6.7. Noise generated from the use of the car park was considered another area of potential 
unacceptable impact on neighbouring amenity. This was covered in section 9 of the NIA 
revision 6. The number of spaces will increase in the areas surrounding the hotel, 
however, the majority of the site is already a car park and the laying of additional parking 
has been previously approved under application 16/01171/FUL further north of the site. 
Despite this the NIA uses various car park noise databases to calculate the potential noise 
impact and the assessment is based on methods detailed in the Road Traffic Noise. The 
method of calculation and assessment is reasonable to the LPA’s Environmental Health 
team as it would not be possible or reasonable to model every scenario. It has also been 
mentioned by the EH team, that licensing conditions could be used to limit the noise 
should the need arise. The Impact is considered acceptable and can be controlled. It 
should also be noted that the majority of the areas are existing parking areas, and 
therefore the increase in impact is considered minimal. In response to the previous refusal 
of application 17/03237/COMIND the motorcycle bays have been relocated away from the 
eastern boundary to reduce the impact on neighbouring amenity from the noise generated 
from the parking area. 

Page 47



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

6.8. Noise from plant works have been subject to a noise impact assessment16/0017/R2 
conducted by Cole Jarman. This documents outlines that suitable plant equipment can be 
installed to acceptable levels of noise. It has been noted that the subsequent revision 6 of 
the NIA states that choice of plant equipment has not been made yet despite what the 
Plant NIA states. It is considered that an appropriately worded condition that stipulates a 
maximum noise level for plant equipment to comply with gives the commercial business 
greater flexibility in choice of manufacture but also retains control of the noise levels. The 
condenser unit will no longer be wall-mounted but will be placed within a separate 
enclosure consisting of a 2.5m high acoustic barrier around external plant. This will 
reduced the impact on neighbouring amenity, additionally carefully worded conditions 
such as the requirement to switch off plant machinery when the restaurant is not operating 
will also assist in reducing any impact that may felt. The roof based extract system has 
been altered so it now extracts to the south located centrally within the roofscape. This 
thereby reduces any impact that may be felt from this feature. 

6.9. The extensions to create the restaurant are all single storey, therefore it is not considered 
any impact on neighbouring amenity will occur through overlooking or perceived 
overlooking. 

6.10. Conditions restricting external light until details have been submitted are recommended to 
reduce the impact on light spill to neighbouring dwellings. These are also justified in 
regards to protecting the ecology of the site.

6.11. There have been a number of objections submitted to the council in regards to the impact 
on the neighbouring amenity form the proposed development. This impact can be 
controlled through conditions. The Planning Practice Guidance states that cumulative 
impacts must be assessed from developments. The established levels of noise of the both 
existing and proposed have been considered and the levels of noise impact have been 
considered acceptable subject to conditions. 

 
6.12. For these reasons, the proposal subject to conditions, in so far as it relates to protecting 

residential amenity, the development would be, on balance, in accordance with 
development plan policies CS14 and OVS.6, as well as guidance in SPD Quality Design 
and the NPPF.

7.    Highway safety

7.1. The NPPF states that decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access 
to the site can be achieved for all people. Policies CS 13 of the Core Strategy and 
TRANS.1 of the Saved Policies of the Local Plan, set out highway requirements. Policy P1 
of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document sets out the residential car 
parking levels for the district.

7.2. The LPA’s highways department assessed the site as a whole, considering the previously 
approved hotel extension and the parking demands generated from this to draw a ‘worst 
case’ scenario in regards to the parking on the site for all the uses. No current car parking 
standards for A3 uses are adopted by the LPA and therefore each site and application is 
treated on its merits. According to the information submitted and reviewed by the 
Highways team, the following is proposed.

- Total floor area of the restaurant to be 585 sqm
- 10 full time and 15 part time staff are proposed
- Maximum of 20 restaurant staff at busiest period – Saturday evening
- Previously the restaurant employed 15 staff
- Increase in car parking to 121 spaces; includes 4 disabled parking spaces

Page 48



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

- 4 motorcycle spaces
- 10 new cycle stands
- 34 bedrooms within the existing hotel
- Additional 15 bedrooms (subject of planning applications)
- Census data 2011 for this area identifies that 65% of staff travel is by private vehicle

7.3. This application follows refused planning application 17/03273/COMIND.  It is proposed 
that the existing access onto the A4 will be utilised which is acceptable. This current 
application now proposes 121 car parking spaces.  The hotel and events are already 
provided/permitted.  There is also a small bar area within the hotel.  This proposal is for 
the proposed restaurant and additional car parking.  

7.4. According to the floor plans the following number of diners could be accommodated:

- 110 covers internally;
- 40 covers externally;
- There is also a private dining area seating 12.

7.5. 162 covers (internal and external) equates to around 3 covers per vehicle if all diners 
travelled by private vehicle, which is unlikely to be the case.  In reality the spaces would 
be shared across the site.

7.6. Table 5.2 of the Transport Statement (TS) identifies that a maximum of 49 car parking 
spaces could be required for hotel guests at 100% occupancy and if all guests travelled by 
car.  This is likely to be a rare occurrence if at all.  

7.7. There could be up to 20 restaurant staff at peak times – Saturday evenings.  It was 
established on the 2016 application that at this time there could be around 5 hotel staff.  
Assuming 65% of staff would travel by private car, as per the 2011 Census data, this 
could create a demand for around 16 staff vehicles.    

7.8. Therefore with 49 spaces for hotel guests, 16 vehicles for staff, this would leave around 
56 spaces for diners at the restaurant or for (existing) events.  The Transport Statement 
includes data gathered from TRICS and surveys undertaken within Newbury.

7.9. According to the data obtained from TRICS, Table 5.4 and paragraph 5.7.15 identify that 
the restaurant would require 23 car parking spaces on weekdays at busiest periods, and 
28 car parking spaces at weekend peak times (Table 5.6 and paragraph 5.7.20). 

7.10. It is noted at paragraph 5.7.21 that the TRICS data is derived from restaurant only sites 
rather than hotel and restaurants where parking could be shared between the two. Table 
7.2 on page 20 suggests that 52 spaces are required for the hotel on non-event days at 
weekends, with 75 required for event days at weekends, this would leave 46 spaces for 
the restaurant.

7.11. This current application includes a survey of parking spaces at other hotels within 
Newbury that also contain a restaurant.  It was established that the average number of 
parking spaces per bedroom across the 5 surveyed hotels is 1.58 (Table 5.9 on page 17 
of the Transport Statement – TS) with the average number of parking spaces per 
bedroom at the Newbury Manor Hotel being 2.6. No assessment has been undertaken at 
peak times e.g. Saturday evenings.

7.12. The hotel is already operating from this site.  Recent/current applications could see the 
number of bedrooms increase to 49 (if approved).  Events are currently permitted from 
this site and there is small bar within the hotel building.  This application proposes a new 
restaurant with additional car parking spaces. West Berkshire Council does not have 

Page 49



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

current car parking standards for A3 use and so applications such as this are assessed on 
their own merits.

7.13. Given all of the above and the information accompanying this application, it is the view of 
the highway authority that, with the increased car parking now proposed, it would be 
difficult to now object to this application on these grounds.  

7.14. In regards to Motor Cycle Parking and Cycle Storage the highways team are satisfied with 
the levels proposed.

7.15. This proposal will see an increase in vehicle movements.  It is noted that during the AM 
peak there should be no increase.  In the PM peak period there could be an increase of 
around 27 two-way movements (paragraph 8.1.1).  However, given this site is accessed 
directly onto the A4 this is a negligible increase. 

7.16. The increase in car parking for this site is much welcomed and is a requirement of this 
application.  The highway recommendation is for conditional approval as set out the 
Highways Officers email response. 

7.17. Therefore the proposal is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with CS13 of 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Saved Local Plan policy TRANS1 and the 
NPPF (2018), subject to conditions.

8. Drainage and Flooding

8.1. The NPPF states that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be 
avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk. Core Strategy Policy 
CS 16 addresses issues regarding flood risk. This policy stipulates that sites require a 
flood risk assessment if they fall within Flood Zone 2 or 3, a flood risk assessment has 
been submitted created by Peterbrett. This document was consulted upon with the LPA’s 
drainage team who noted that the proposed development consisting of the re 
arrangement of the car park area would largely be similar in impact to that previously 
approved under application 16/01171/FUL. No objections were raised in response to the 
flood risk assessment that altered the parking areas within the hotels grounds. The 
proposal will change the existing gravelled car park to an area of block paviours with 
suitable sustainable drainage measures. 

8.2. The Sustainable Drainage Team raised no objections to the details contained within the 
flood risk assessment and recommended a condition be applied for more specific details 
of the sustainable drainage methods be submitted prior to the commencement of works. 

8.3. A number of objectors have raised concerns over the increase likelihood of flooding 
should the application be approved. The flood risk assessment has shown that through 
appropriate measures the impact from the proposed development can be mitigated and 
will not increase flooding in this area. The LPA’s sustainable drainage team agrees with 
this assessment and for these reasons, the proposal would be in accordance with policy 
CS16 of the Core Strategy and advice contained within the NPPF subject to conditions

9.  Ecology and Tress

9.1. Policy CS 17 of the Core Strategy states that biodiversity and geodiversity assets across 
West Berkshire will be conserved and enhanced. The NPPF supports the overall aims and 
objectives of this policy. The application site is located adjacent to a SAC and SSSI of the 
River Lambourn it also contains a number of significant trees protected under the 
Conservation area. 

Page 50



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

9.2. The application has evolved and responded to the previous reasons for refusal of 
application 17/03237/COMIND. It now proposes a substantial landscaped buffer to the 
eastern edge of the site. This is proposed to screen the development to neighbours and 
enhance and work in combination with the existing planting on this boundary. The 
application covering letter states that a closed canopy can be achieved within two growing 
seasons. 

9.3. There are a number of significant mature trees that are affected by the proposals, they are 
all protected under the Conservation Area status. The submitted arboricultural information 
prepared by Ian Murat of A C S Consulting dated July 2018 and Landscape planting plan 
dated July 2018 is considered to be adequate for the purpose of determining this 
application as far as tree and landscape implications are concerned.  The increase of the 
boundary landscaping on the eastern side is welcomed and reduces the impact of the 
development on the retained trees. 

9.4. Due to the sensitive nature of the site and the adjoining SSSI and SAC site of the River 
Lambourn a number of objections have been raised in regards to the impact on the 
ecology of the site. This has been closely considered by the councils Ecology and Natural 
England.

9.5. The LPA’s Ecologist was consulted upon the application and noted that his previous 
comments still apply however only the lighting and the provision of the swift boxes need to 
be conditioned. These mitigation and enhancement measures suggested in response to 
the ecology reports that have been submitted in support of this application. 

9.6. The LPA’s Ecologist notes that the ecology information is dated December 2015. Standing 
advice from Natural England is that surveys should not be over 2 – 3 years old for medium 
to high impact schemes.  (Natural England – Standing Advice for Protected Species) 
 However, since this site is adjacent to a SAC and SSSI and has the potential to impact on 
a number of species it is worth having a refresh done especially as the land has been 
vacant for several breeding seasons and new species might have migrated in. I note that 
the Water Vole survey was updated in 2016 and again in 2017 and therefore does not 
need to be done again.

9.7. Updated ecology reports were submitted to the LPA, to which were reviewed by the LPA’s 
ecologist who raised no objections. 

9.8. Regarding the recent objection on ecological grounds; Bats and Water Voles. The Bat 
survey done in 2018 clearly shows that there are no bat roosts in the building or in the 
surrounding trees that is impacted by the proposed development and the proposed 
mitigation measures with regards to lighting will preserve the area as a feeding area.

9.9. With regards to the in season studies Bats can be active all year round.  The ecologist 
suspected what is being called for is emergence and surveys which are normally 
conducted at dawn or dusk between April and September during which time Bats usually 
hibernate.  In addition, tree roosts can be assessed all year round and often when the 
foliage is absent it is easier to spot cavities in trees that could provide a roost.

9.10. However, as the application is related to a building it is still possible to undertake a 
physical survey of the buildings during winter months by searching droppings, food 
remains, smell and grease marks for example.  It is therefore the ecologists opinion that it 
is not reasonable to require 3 emergence /re-emergence surveys.

9.11. With regards Water Voles again the recent survey May 2017 found no evidence of Water 
Voles and went to some length to describe why.  With regards to timing the May survey 
was undertaken during the recommended survey period which is between mid-April and 
late September.  

Page 51



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

9.12. The study area was suitable for the application and the additional photo of a water vole 
appears to have been taken outside of this study area.  However, the mitigation measures 
proposed are suitable.

9.13. The case quoted involved the authority not taking due consideration and not proposing 
mitigation measure, this is clearly not the case with this application.  The ecologists report 
clearly does consider the priority species around the site and the even though none are 
directly affected the proposed mitigation measures as a precautionary principle are 
suitable. 

9.14. The Environments Agency were of the opinion that the proposed development will be 
acceptable if a planning condition is included requiring a scheme to be agreed to ensure 
that the landscape within the site is managed in such a way as to protect and enhance the 
ecological value of the site including the River Lambourn Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

9.15. This condition is necessary to ensure the protection of wildlife and supporting habitat and 
secure opportunities for the enhancement of the nature conservation value of the site in 
line with national planning policy. 

9.16. This condition is supported by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 
paragraph 109 which aims to conserve and enhance the natural and local environment by 
minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in biodiversity where possible. 
In addition in line with Paragraph 118 of the NPPF also states that opportunities to 
incorporate biodiversity in and around developments should be encouraged.

9.17. Natural England reviewed the information submitted within this application built there 
response on the previous information in regards to how the proposal will not adversely 
impact the River Lambourn SAC. They wanted to see information in relation to a 
Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) and further information in regards to 
the long term maintenance of the SUDs system and details of the onsite waste 
management system. 

9.18. Natural England withdrew their objection subject to a number of planning conditions. The 
suggested areas of conditions are considered appropriate and related to many of the 
conditions already being requested by the LPA’s Ecologist and the Environments Agency. 
It is considered, on balance, that the development will comply with CS17 of the Core 
Strategy and provide mitigation and protection to the Ecology of the site and will not have 
a detrimental impact in accordance in accordance with the provisions of Core Strategy 
CS17 and advice within the NPPF.

10. Archaeology of the Site

10.1.The Council’s Archaeologist has reviewed the application and comments that the 
proposed restaurant is within an area of ‘high’ or ‘highest’ potential for Mesolithic 
archaeology or palaeo-environmental evidence, but previous advice was that the site 
would have been disturbed by the construction of buildings during the late 19th and early 
20th century. Evidence suggests that there will be no major impact on any features of 
archaeological significance. 

10.2.It is therefore considered conditions are unreasonable and no investigation programme is 
required. The proposed development is therefore considered in line with CS19 of the Core 
Strategy and Advice within the NPPF.

11.   Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Page 52



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

11.1. Under the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by West Berkshire 
Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations the proposal for 
the extension to the existing building for an A3 use would incur a CIL contribution. The 
Local Chagrining Authority will review the levy due if approval is given. 

12.  The Planning Balance and Assessment of Sustainable Development

12.1. The NPPF states there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which 
paragraph 197 advises should be applied in assessing and determining development 
proposals. The NPPF identifies three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, 
social and environmental.

12.2. The proposed development would bring economic development to Newbury through the 
creation of a Restaurant (A3) use that will provide 10 full time jobs and 15 part time jobs in 
a sustainable location that is well connect to transport links. The environmental 
considerations have been assessed in terms of the impact on the listed building, the 
impact on the Conservation area, and the impact on the River Lambourn (SSSI and SAC). 
It is considered that through appropriate conditions the impact of the development can be 
mitigated and enhanced in line with policy and that harm no harm to the trees and ecology 
of the site will occur from the proposed development. The Conservation Officer is content 
with the design and the impact from the development on the hotels grade II listed status. 

12.3. The social implications for sustainable development have caused the most objection to 
this development. The noise emitted from the restaurant is considered to be of a level that 
will not cause significant impact, appropriate conditions can be recommended to control 
the noise emitted. There is also concern that the proposed development will cause an 
increase in flood risk, but sustainable drainage methods can be employed and the LPA’s 
drainage team consider the level of impact acceptable subject to conditions. 

12.4. The site has number of constraints that interlink with each other and the mitigation 
methods and conditions suggested will all interlink to produce a development that benefits 
Newbury commercially. Balanced against the commercial benefit are the issues of 
Conservation and protection of the ecology and trees of the site. However the LPA’s 
officers all agree that the development will, subject to conditions, not have an adverse 
impact upon these. The evidence that has been submitted and reviewed the LPA’s 
Environmental Health officers indicates that the level of noise is acceptable subject to 
conditions and that there are alternative licensing and EH legislation that can protect 
neighbouring amenity alongside the planning conditions recommended. 

12.5. The scheme has evolved from the previous withdrawn and previously refused schemes 
that have been submitted for similar proposals on the site. The proposal has reacted to 
the council’s refusal reasons and has made changes to the landscaping, car parking 
layout and associated plant machinery. These changes all, in the case officers eyes, 
enhance the development and deal with the concerns previously raised. Additionally the 
number of objections to this application has significantly fallen in comparison to previous 
applications. 

12.6. When weighing the proposed development in the planning balance, each constraint can 
be mitigated by conditions and there is a clear economic benefit to the proposal. The case 
officer in weighing the negative impact upon the neighbouring amenity against the 
commercial and employment benefits considers that the negative impact can be mitigated 
by conditions. 

12.7. The application is therefore recommended for conditional APPROVAL. 

12.8. The proposal for the Extension and alteration of existing cottage to create hotel restaurant 
with outdoor seating terrace, condenser unit to side and roof-mounted extract is 

Page 53



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

considered in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2018), policies 
ADPP1, ADPP2, CS11, CS13, CS14, CS16, CS17, CS18 and CS19 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and OVS.5 and OVS.6 of the West Berkshire Local 
Plan Policies 1991-2006 (Saved 2007). In addition to these the proposal is in line with 
supplementary planning guidance Quality Design (June 2006).

The Head of Development and Planning be authorised to Grant Planning Permission subject 
to the following conditions:

1. Full planning permission time limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 
date of this permission.

Reason:   To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by 
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2. Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
drawings 

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Elevations- Sheet 1”. Drawing number RP.05. Date 
stamped 14th August 2018. 

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Elevations- Sheet 2”. Drawing number RP.06. Date 
stamped 14th August 2018.

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Sections”. Drawing number RP.07. Date stamped 14th 
August 2018.

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Ground Floor Plan”. Drawing number RP.02 A. Date 
stamped 14th August 2018.

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant First Floor Plan”. Drawing number RP.03 Rev A. Date 
stamped 15th October 2018.

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Roof Plan”. Drawing number RP.04. Rev A Date 
stamped 15th October 2018.

- Drawing title “Landscaping planting Plan”. Drawing number 149/PA/PP/00/01 Rev E. Date 
stamped 14th August 2018. 

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Site Plan”. Drawing number RP.01. Date stamped 14th 
August 2018.

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Location Plan”. Drawing number RL.01 A. Date 
stamped 14th August 2018

- Drawing title “Proposed Restaurant Block Plan”. Drawing number RB.01. Date stamped 
14th August 2018. 

- Drawing title “Kitchen Ventilation”. Drawing number CCN-01. Date stamped 14th August 
2018.

-  Drawing title “Kitchen Ventilation”. Drawing number CCN-02. Date stamped 14th August 
2018.

Reason:   For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

3. Schedule of materials  (optional samples)

No works above ground level shall take place until a schedule of the materials to be used in the 
construction of the external surfaces of the building and hard surfaced areas hereby permitted has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This condition shall 
apply irrespective of any indications as to these matters which have been detailed in the current 
application.  Samples of the materials shall be made available for inspection on request. Thereafter 
the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved materials.

Page 54



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

Reason:   To ensure that the external materials are visually attractive and respond to local 
character.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2018), Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) AND 
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006). 

4. Submission of Construction Ecology Management Plan

No development shall take place until a Construction Ecology Management Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Natural England shall be 
consulted upon the details submitted in the interest of the SAC/SSSI.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The statement shall provide for:

(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities 
for public viewing
(e) Wheel washing facilities
(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works
(h) Measures to ensure no sediment or polluted runoff enters the river when undertaking activities 
such as wheel washing, refuelling of machinery, storing materials etc. 
(i) Measure to ensure best practice and Environmental standards will be adhered to where 
practically possible
(J) 8m buffer zone from the river Lambourn prior to work by both visual and physical means to 
prevent any inadvertent impact on water voles. The buffer zone will be maintained as an 
undisturbed riparian corridor

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the interests of 
highway safety and the safeguarding of the SAC/SSSI.  This condition is imposed in accordance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2018), Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007). 

5. Condition Environments Agency 

No development shall take place until a landscape management plan, including long- term design 
objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas 
(except privately owned domestic gardens), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved and 
any subsequent variations shall be agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme 
shall include the following elements: 

- Details of how the existing river corridor will be protected during the construction period. 
The river corridor and associated habitats should be clearly identified and marked out. 
Access by construction vehicles and storage of materials shall not be permitted in this area. 

- The existing river habitat and that of the large pool area adjacent to the old restaurant on 
site are currently has very poor marginal habitat with limited growth of marginal plants and 
much of the bank is made up with hard revetment such as 

- End 2 wooden sleepers. The management plan should include the improvement of these 
marginal habitats including the replacement of hard revetment with a more natural option. 
The suitable management of these habitats should be agreed, including leaving significant 
‘un-mown’ areas adjacent to the river. 

- The ecological management should include provision for the sensitive management of the 
fish passes which allow movement of fish from the River Kennet and into the River 
Lambourn SAC can become much less efficient without proper management

Page 55



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

Reasons: This condition is necessary to ensure the protection of wildlife and supporting habitat and 
secure opportunities for the enhancement of the nature conservation value of the site in line with 
national planning policy. This condition is placed in accordance with National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), paragraph 109 and 118 and in line with CS 17 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026). 

6. SUDS Pre condition 

No development shall take place until details of sustainable drainage measures to manage surface 
water within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
These details shall:

a) Incorporate the implementation of Sustainable Drainage methods (SuDS) in accordance 
with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS (March 2015), the SuDS Manual 
C753 (2015) and West Berkshire Council local standards;

b) Include and be informed by a ground investigation survey which establishes the soil 
characteristics, infiltration rate and groundwater levels;

c) Include details of how the existing flood plain will be sustained or mitigated (any measures 
for loss of flood plain shall not increase flood risk elsewhere);

e) Include construction drawings, cross-sections and specifications of all proposed SuDS 
measures within the site;

f) Include run-off calculations, discharge rates, infiltration and storage capacity calculations 
for the proposed SuDS measures based on a 1 in 100 year storm +40% for climate change;

g) Include elevated floors with voids underneath for flood storage to minimise the loss of flood 
storage capacity.  Arches shall be fitted with grills to prevent access under the building by 
children or animals, or for storage of materials which would remove flood storage volume;

j) Include pre-treatment methods to prevent any pollution or silt entering SuDS features or 
causing any contamination to the soil or groundwater;

k) Ensure any permeable paved areas are designed and constructed in accordance with 
manufacturers guidelines.

n) Include a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development.  This plan 
shall incorporate arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory 
undertaker, management and maintenance by a management company or any other 
arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage scheme throughout its 
lifetime.

o) This will also include specific measures to ensure the protection of the River Lambourn 
SSSI and SAC from the SuDs system. 

The above sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the building(s) hereby permitted is occupied. The sustainable drainage measures 
shall be maintained and managed in accordance with the approved details thereafter.

Reason:   To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; to prevent the 
increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, habitat and amenity and ensure 
future maintenance of the surface water drainage system can be, and is carried out in an 
appropriate and efficient manner.  This condition is applied in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and 
Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).  A pre-condition is 
necessary because insufficient detailed information accompanies the application; sustainable 
drainage measures may require work to be undertaken throughout the construction phase and so it 
is necessary to approve these details before any development takes place.

7. HIGH12 - Parking/turning in accord with plans (YHA24)

Page 56



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

The development shall not be brought into use until the vehicle parking and/or turning space have 
been surfaced, marked out and provided in accordance with the approved plan(s).  The parking 
and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking (of private motor cars and/or light 
goods vehicles) at all times.
Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in order to reduce 
the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road safety and the flow of traffic.  
This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2018), 
Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

8. HIGH19 – Motor Cycle and Cycle parking (YHA35) - variation

The development shall not be brought into use until the motor cycle and cycle parking has been 
provided in accordance with the approved drawings and this area shall thereafter be kept available 
for the parking of motor cycles and cycles at all times. 

Reason: To ensure the development reduces assists with the parking, storage and security of 
cycles and motor cycles.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework (2018), Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

9. HIGH19 – Electric Car Charging Point 

The development shall not be brought into use until a parking space is installed with at least a 
single charging point with a minimum of two sockets to enable two vehicles to be charged at any 
one time with electricity. 

Reason: To promote the use of sustainable travel methods. The provision of charging points is 
supported by paragraph 35 of the NPPF, which states that developments should be ‘designed 
where practical to incorporate facilities for charging and plug-in and other ultra-low emission 
vehicles’. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2018), Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the 
West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

10. Public Foul Drainage System 

The development shall not be brought into use until it has been connected to the public foul 
drainage system and that foul water will not be dealt with through a package treatment plant or 
septic tank. 

Reasons: This condition is necessary to ensure the protection of wildlife and supporting habitat and 
secure opportunities for the enhancement of the nature conservation value of the site in line with 
national planning policy. This condition is placed in accordance with National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), paragraph 109 and 118 and in line with CS 17 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026). 

11. Plant and machinery noise

Noise resulting from the use of plant, machinery and other equipment shall not at any time exceed 
a level of 5dB(A) below the prevailing background sound level (or 10dB(A) below if there is a 
particular tonal quality) when measured according to British Standard BS4142-2014, at the 
boundary of the application site at a point closest to residential dwellings in Two Rivers Way.  
Further assessment of the prevailing day time and night time background sound levels will be 
required to ensure compliance with this condition. 

Reason: In the interests of protecting the local residents from unreasonable noise levels which 
would be detrimental to the residential character of the area. This condition is applied in 

Page 57



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2018), CS14 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

12.  Plant and machinery maintenance and operating times

All extraction plant, machinery and/or equipment installed externally on the development shall be 
regularly maintained and, except for refrigeration plant, be switched off when the restaurant is not 
operating. 

Reason: In the interests of protecting the local residents from unreasonable noise levels which 
would be detrimental to the residential character of the area. This condition is applied in 
accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework (2018), CS14 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy (2006-2026) and OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007

13. Acoustic fencing

Acoustic fencing shall be installed in accordance with drawing “Proposed Restaurant Ground Floor 
Plan Drawing Ref RP.02 A” to the area adjoining the external seat area to the east and around the 
proposed plant compound on the eastern facade

Reason: In the interests of protecting the local residents from unreasonable noise levels which 
would be detrimental to the residential character of the area. This condition is applied in 
accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework (2018), CS14 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy (2006-2026) and OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007).

14.  Noise from waste and bottle disposal

Before the use hereby approved commences the applicant shall submit to the Local Planning 
Authority a scheme of works or such other steps as may be necessary to minimise the effects of 
waste and bottle disposal associated with the development on neighbouring amenity. This will 
included information regarding the ‘glass buster’ referred to in Cole Jarman Noise Impact 
Assessment Report 16/0017/RO1// Revision 07.  The use shall not commence until written 
approval has been given by the Local Planning Authority to any such scheme of works.

Reason: In the interests of protecting the local residents from unreasonable noise levels which 
would be detrimental to the residential character of the area. This condition is applied in 
accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework (2018), CS14 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy (2006-2026) and OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007)

15.  Hours of deliveries

No deliveries shall be taken at or despatched from the site outside the following hours: 

9:00 to 18:00 Mondays to Saturdays;
nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of surrounding occupiers.  This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2018) and Policy CS14 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

16. Hours of use (restaurants etc.)

The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following hours:

Page 58



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

07:00:00 to 23:00:00 Mondays to Fridays;
07:00:00 to 23:00:00 Saturdays;
07:30:00 to 22:00:00 Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of surrounding occupiers.  This condition is applied in 
accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2018), CS14 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

17.  Hours of music

No amplified sound shall be played in the restaurant other than background music.  No speakers 
shall be installed or used within or immediately adjacent to the outside seating area.

Reason: In the interests of protecting the local residents from unreasonable noise levels which 
would be detrimental to the residential character of the area. The submitted Noise Impact 
Assessment Cole Jarman Noise Impact Assessment Report 16/0017/RO1// Revision 07 does not 
include music levels in its assessment. This condition is applied in accordance with The National 
Planning Policy Framework (2018), CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

18.  Hours of work (construction)

No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours:

8:00a.m. to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This condition is 
applied in accordance with The National Planning Policy Framework (2018), CS14 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

19.  Odour from extract systems. 

Before the use hereby approved commences the applicant shall submit to the Local Planning 
Authority a scheme of works or such other steps as may be necessary to minimise the effects of 
odour from the preparation of food associated with the development. The approved use shall not 
commence until written approval has been given by the Local Planning Authority to any such 
scheme of works. The extraction system including odour prevention measures shall be retained 
and maintained for the duration of the permitted development

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring occupier. To safeguard the amenities of 
adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This condition is applied in accordance with The National 
Planning Policy Framework (2018), CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
OVS5. And OVS6. Of the West Berkshire Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

20. Lighting strategy
 
No external lighting shall be installed on the development hereby permitted until a detailed Lighting 
Strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
Lighting Strategy shall ensure that any lighting limits the impact on bats and avoid light spillage 
along the River Lambourn to avoid potential impact on otters. Thereafter the development shall 
incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the approved statement.

Page 59



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

Reason:  To ensure the protection of Bat and Otter species among other species, which are 
subject to statutory protection under European Legislation.  This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2018), Policy CS17 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

21. Mitigation (implement)

Prior to the commencement of the use of the building Two  Ibstock Swift Box, Schwegler Swift Box 
Type 25 or the Schwegler Swift Box Type 16 are provided on the exterior of the new building AND 
shall thereafter be retained and maintained.

Reason:  To ensure the protection of Bats, Otters and other species, which are subject to statutory 
protection under European Legislation.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2018), Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

22. Tree Protection (scheme submitted)

Protective fencing shall be implemented and retained intact for the duration of the development in 
accordance with the tree and landscape protection scheme identified on approved drawing(s) 
numbered plan Arboricultural Plan ref no: ARB/3519/Y/500. Within the fenced area(s), there shall 
be no excavations, storage of materials or machinery, parking of vehicles or fires.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with the objectives of  the NPPF and 
Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

23. Arboricultural supervision condition

No development shall take place (including site clearance and any other preparatory works) until 
the applicant has secured with the implementation of an arboricultural watching brief in accordance 
with written scheme of site monitoring within the Arboricultural Report, which has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with the objectives of the NPPF and 
Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

24. Tree Protection (scheme submitted)

Protective fencing shall be implemented and retained intact for the duration of the development in 
accordance with the tree and landscape protection scheme identified on approved drawing(s) 
numbered plan Arboricultural Plan ref no: ARB/3519/Y/600. Within the fenced area(s), there shall 
be no excavations, storage of materials or machinery, parking of vehicles or fires.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with the objectives of  the NPPF and 
Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

25. Landscaping implementation

The approved landscaping plan 149/LA/PP/00/01 rev E dated July 2018 shall be implemented 
within the first planting season following completion of development or in accordance with a 
programme submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees, 
shrubs or plants that die or become seriously damaged within five years of this development shall 
be replaced in the following year by plants of the same size and species.

Page 60



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018

Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping in accordance with 
the objectives of the NPPF and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006-2026.

Informatives

No objections, some need for revision

This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development 
having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to secure high quality 
appropriate development which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of the 
area.

River Lambourn SSSI and SAC Site

The River Lambourn, designated a SSSI and SAC, is a sensitive environmental receptor. We 
advise the applicant that they refer to the current guidance on pollution prevention to protect this 
site. Please see: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pollution-prevention-for-businesses

Damage to footways, cycleways and verges

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act, 1986, Part II, Clause 9, which enables 
the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway, cycleway or grass 
verge, arising during building operations.

Damage to the carriageway

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Highways Act, 1980, which enables the Highway 
Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

Excavation in close proximity to the highway

In order to protect the stability of the highway it is advised that no excavation be carried out within 
15 metres of a public highway without the written approval of the Highway Authority.

Ecology Advisory 

The brash and log pile is dismantled and removed by hand. This should be undertaken outside the 
hibernation period for grass snakes, avoiding the period October to March inclusive. Any snakes 
encountered should be removed by hand to safety. Suitable habitats occur immediately to the east 
of the site are suitable for the species and any reptiles encountered can be placed within this 
habitat, along the River Lambourn. It is recommended that log piles are retained within the site, 
within discrete areas of the garden. New log piles could be created from the felled trees.

DC

Page 61



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 31st October 2018
Page 62



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty 's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings .

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

Not Set

18 October 2018

1:8409

18/02019/COMIND

Newbury Manor Hotel, London Road, Newbury, RG14 2BY

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. and Parish: 18/01657/COND1 - Cold Ash Parish Council
	18.01657_COND1 MAP

	4.(2) Application No. and Parish: 18/01914/HOUSE - Hampstead Norreys Parish Council
	18.01914HOUSE map

	4.(3) Application No. and Parish: 18/02019/COMIND - Newbury Town Council
	18.02019_COMIND MAP


